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CORPORATE PROFILE

The CSC Group is now one of the major players in the construction industry in Singapore.  The Group is 
professionally run and it is well recognized as a leading specialist contractor in the areas of foundation 
and geotechnical engineering with strong design-and-build capability.  The Group is also partners to many 
building and civil engineering contractors in precast construction products and steel fabrication (including 
welded steel fabric).  Sale and leasing of foundation engineering equipment is another new business which 
the Group has expanded into regional markets.

The Group strives to serve its customers with quality, professionalism and their interests in mind.  Quality 
certifi cations awarded over the years include :

• 2002 BS EN ISO 9001:2000 for “Design and Installation of Bored Piles”

• 2002 BS EN ISO 9001:2000 for 
 1. “Design and Production of Reinforced Concrete Piles”;
 2. “Design and Installation of Driven, Jack-in and Bored Piles”; and
 3. “Civil Engineering Works”

• 2004 BS EN ISO 9001:2000 for 
 1. “Manufacture of Cold Reduced Steel Wire”;
 2. “Manufacture of Welded Steel Fabric”;
 3. “Provision of Cutting and Bending Services of Steel Bars”; and
 4. “Manufacture of Stirrups”

• 2005 BS EN ISO 14001:2004 for the Environmental Management Systems

• 2006 OHSAS 18001:1999 for The Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems

The origins of the CSC group can be traced back to 1975 when Ching Soon 
Engineering was founded to undertake excavation works as well as H-section 
steel piling works.  In 1979, it diversifi ed into reinforced concrete piling works and 
other general civil engineering works.  CSC Holdings Limited was incorporated 
in 1997 as an investment holding company for the Group, and was subsequently 
listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange on 13 April 1998.

We don’t just sell products

We provide total solutions
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WITH
VISIONS

GAINING THE LEAD

CSC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(199707845E)
Investment holding

100% CHING SOON CONSTRUCTION PTE LTD       100% CS GEOTECHNIC PTE LTD 
 (198105338M)  (199600063N) 
 Piling and civil engineering works  Geotechnical engineering works

100% CS BORED PILE SYSTEMS PTE LTD
 (199600062D)
 Bored piling works

100% CHING SOON INDUSTRIES PTE LTD
 (199600139R)
 Steel fabrication (including welded steel fabric)

100% CS INDUSTRIAL LAND PTE LTD
 (199805620G)
 Owner of industrial properties

100% KOLETTE PTE LTD
 (200000873R)
 Sales and sublet of land and property development

100% THL ENGINEERING PTE LTD     55%  THL FOUNDATION EQUIPMENT PTE LTD
 (199403132C)  (200408545C)
 Sheet piling/ temporary works  Sale and leasing of foundation engineering
  equipment
100% CHING SOON CONCRETE PRODUCTS SDN BHD
 (443272-K)
 (Dormant)

100% CS INDIA PTE LTD       50%  READYMADE STEEL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
 (200606145W)  (U27100MH2006PTC160602)
 Investment holding  Manufacturing and distribution 
  of iron and steel products.
40%  EXCEL PRECAST PTE LTD
 (199901158W)
 Manufacturing and trading of precast concrete products.

100% CHING SOON CONSTRUCTION SDN BHD
 (443282-H)
 (In the process of voluntary liquidation in the country of incorporation)

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

I am delighted on behalf of the Board of Directors 
to present to our shareholders the Group’s Annual 
Report 2006 for twelve months ended on 31 March 
2006.

We commenced 2005 with a note of cautious 
optimism and kept our Group conservatively 
focused as the regional economies continued with 
their rebound, rapid changes and new challenges 
in our competitive environment.  The recent 
economic survey reveals that for fi rst quarter 2006 
the growth momentum in the construction sector 
has strengthened to 25% on a quarter-on-quarter 
annualized basis.  I am glad that the Group recorded 
substantially improved results for FY 2005/2006 with 
more than 100% increase in net profi t and our NAV 
has further increased by 11% to 6 cents per share.  
All our staff is positive and committed to embrace 
the measures necessary to ensure our continued 
growth and enhanced shareholders’ return.

The Group with its enhanced professional 
management capabilities will constantly review and 
improve its business and operational activities.

At the Board’s level, I am pleased to welcome Mr See 
Yen Tarn and Mr Tan Hup Foi as directors. Both Mr 
See and Mr Tan, with their wealth of expertise and 
experience would defi nitely contribute positively for 
the betterment of the Group.  During the period, the 
Group witnessed a major change in its shareholders 
with TH Investments Pte Ltd and the concerted 
parties holding a total of 59.4% of the issued and 
paid up capital of CSC after a successful General 
Offer.  The Management is proud to be part of the 
Tat Hong Group and together we will defi nitely 
achieve better growth.

In 2006, a stronger showing is anticipated in the 
construction industry. Based on Building and 
Construction Authority’s latest Development 
Plans Survey and the recent developments in the 
construction sector, total construction demand 
is likely to reach between $12.0 billion and $13.5 
billion.  Both private and public sectors are expected 
to show improvement.  Being a forerunner in the 
business of foundation engineering and geotechnical 
works, the Group will continue to capitalize on its 
strength and is all prepared to reap the benefi ts 
when the construction sector recovery momentum 
continues.

Recognizing that beyond Singapore market there 
exist the potential increasing opportunities in 
different parts of Asia and Middle East region, the 
Group will seek out business prospects that offer 
synergistic and strategic benefi ts with growth 
potential for the Group.

Moving ahead, the Board of Directors recognizes 
the importance and prudence of good governance.  
We reiterate that we will continue to be mindful 
of our responsibilities to enhance shareholders’ 
value and our relentless effort to bring continuous 
growth, expansion and benefi cial results to all our 
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, let me take this opportunity 
to thank all our valued shareholders for their 
unwavering support over the past years; our 
valued clients, business associates and bankers 
for their continuous support and confi dence given 
to the Group.  The Board would like to record its 
appreciation to Ms Toh Soo Hui, who has tendered 
her resignation as Executive Director with effect 
from 30 June 2006 and Mr Low Seow Chye, who 
will retire as Independent Director at the forthcoming 
AGM for their invaluable contributions. Last but not 
least, to our Board of Directors, Management team 
and all our staff, I extend my deepest gratitude for 
their total commitment, cooperation and dedication 
to the Group. I am confi dent altogether we will 
surge further and achieve greater progress in the 
years ahead.

CHEE TECK KWONG
Chairman

FINANCIAL REVIEW

CSC Group has achieved another profi table year 
with substantially better results.

Group turnover increased by 39.4% to $107.3 million 
and net profi t more than doubled to $4.4million 
(increased by 109%).  

The signifi cant improvement was due largely to 
a higher level of the Group’s core activities in 
foundation engineering works as well as higher sales 
in the trading and leasing of foundation engineering 
equipment. Profi t before tax was recorded 
at $4.8 million.

Group EBITDA increased by 36.2% to $9.35 million 
while EPS rose 79.2% to 0.43 cents.

Group borrowings increased by 22.6% to $29.8 
million as it funded its higher level of core activities 
and additions of foundation equipment.  Financial 
costs increased by 24.6% to $1.8 million and gearing 
ratio increased by 10% to 0.556.

Group’s liquidity improved signifi cantly with net 
current assets increased by 47% to $20.7 million 
(current ratio 1.46) and cash and cash equivalent 
increased by 44% to $3.6 million.

Shareholders’ equity has further strengthened to 
$53.6 million and accordingly NAV per share rose 
11% to 6 cents.

During the period, there was a major change taken 
place at the shareholder’s level. On 1 July 2005, 
TH Investment Pte Ltd (THI) launched a General 
Offer to acquire all issued shares in CSC Holdings 
Limited (CSC) at $0.03 per share.  In relation to the 
General Offer, the parties acting in concert with THI 
were Chwee Cheng & Sons Pte Ltd, the family of 
Mr Ng San Tiong, Tat Hong Holdings Ltd and CIMB-
GK Holdings Pte Ltd.  At the closure of the General 
Offer on 31 August 2005, with the fi nal Offer Price 
of S$0.038 per share, THI and the concerted parties 
together owned and controlled in total 59.4% of the 
issued and paid-up share capital of CSC.

CEO’S MESSAGE

The Management is very pleased to be part of Tat 
Hong Group and will work towards the maximization 
of synergy between the two groups.

OPERATION REVIEW

Piled Foundation / Geotechnical Business

Despite the negative growth in the construction 
industry, this segment of the Group’s business 
barked the trend to show strong performance with 
turnover increased by 24% to $88.7 million.

During the year, the Group has completed some high 
profi le foundation projects such as the $12 million 
large diameter bored pile foundation (1350 piles) 
for The Pinnacles-HDB 50-storey public housing at 
Duxton Hill, and a $16 million driven pile foundation 
(7000 piles) for 32 large oil storage tanks for Horizon 
Singapore Projects Pte Ltd at Jurong Island. The 
award of The Pinnacles and The Horizon projects is 
a fi rm recognition of CSC Group’s expertise in large 
scale specialized pile foundation works. 
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The Group has also served prominent client such 
as Novartis, Glaxo-Smith-Kline, Tate & Lyle and 
Huntsman in a number of pharmaceutical projects, 
LTA in MRT projects and HDB in public housing 
projects. During the period, the Group has completed 
$5 million of piling work at MRT Circle Line Contract 
855 and presently has a $13 million bored piles/ 
soldier piles works for MRT Circle Line Contract 
856 in progress. The Group has also completed 
$4 million of micro-piles and jack-in piles for HDB 
upgrading works and $3 million of bored piling work 
for HDB new development projects at Sengkang.

The Group’s subsidiary, Ching Soon Construction 
Pte Ltd has successfully obtained the BS EN ISO 
14001:2004 certifi cations for its Environmental 
Management Systems in December 2005 and 
OHSAS 18001:1999 certifi cation for its Occupational 
Health and Safety Management Systems in January 
2006.  These certifi cations will further enhance the 
Group’s quality services to customers.

Foundation Engineering Equipment Business

In its fi rst year of operation, the Group’s subsidiary 
THL Foundation Equipment Pte Ltd (a joint venture 
with Tat Hong HeavyEquipment Pte Ltd) has achieved 
satisfactory results.  The trading and leasing of 
foundation equipment recorded a turnover of $11.7 
million and net profi t of $1.3 million.

The Group has planned to expand this business 
segment overseas such as Vietnam and Middle East 
where there are good market demand for foundation 
equipment.

Management and Sale of Industrial Land

During the period, the Group has signed a sale 
agreement with Sankyu (Singapore) Pte Ltd for one 
plot of industrial land at Tuas South Avenue 2/5 at a 
consideration of $3,422,709 million.  The sale was 
completed in June 2006.

Rental income from properties amounted to $0.7 
million during the fi nancial year. 

In September 2005, the Group has granted a call 
option to a new industrial REIT, Cambridge Industrial 
Trust (CIT) for sale and lease back of the industrial 
building at 2 Tuas South Avenue 2.  The consideration 
of the sale is $23 million. CIT has obtained the 
necessary clearance from relevant authorities and it 
targets to list on SGX-ST by end July 2006.  

With the proceeds on completion of the sale, 
the Group’s balance sheet would be further 
strengthened, and it would enable the Group to 
expand the horizon of its core business both locally 
and abroad.

LOOKING FORWARD

The outlook is now brighter for Singapore 
construction industry.

The industry has a fair chance to turnaround in 
2006 with total construction demand between $12 
billion and $13 billion. The demand is expected to 
rise to a level of $13 billion to $15 billion per annum 
for the next fi ve years crossing 2007 to 2011.  
Major developments such as the two Integrated 
Resorts, Business Finance Centre, Sport Hub, HDB 
upgrading programme, MRT down town extension, 
rejuvenation of Orchard Road, petrol-chemical and 
pharmaceutical projects will all boost the local 
construction activities.

The Group will ride on good business opportunities in 
the regional construction markets such as Malaysia, 
Vietnam, India and Middle East, which are suitable 
for the Group’s expansion of its core foundation 
engineering business.
 
However, there exists down side risks including 
further increase in oil prices, high interest rates, 
international imbalances and outbreak of bird fl u 
amongst humans.

Within the local market, the Group targets to achieve 
further market penetration through organic growth.  
It also plans to diversify its products by adding new 
activities complementary to the core business.  To 
establish the core business in regional markets, 
the Group adopts the strategy of growing through 
acquisitions of synergistic and profi table businesses 
that would compliment and add value to the Group’s 
business.

With an order book of $48 million as at 30 June 2006 
and pending completion for one or two acquisition 
plans in the near future, the management expects 
to further improve the Group’s performance in the 
new fi nancial year.

CEO’S MESSAGE

8

Building Materials / Products Business

The Group’s steel fabrication business suffered a 
loss due to the deteriorated market demand.  In 
February 2006, the Group has entered into a joint 
venture agreement with some Indian parties to 
relocate its steel fabrication business to Bangalore, 
India. Accordingly, a new subsidiary company, CS 
India Pte Ltd has been incorporated to hold the 
50% equity in the Indian joint venture company, 
Readymade Steel India Private Limited. The 
operation in India is expected to be carried out in 
several phases commencing from October 2006.

As for the business of precast concrete products, 
the Group’s 40% owned associated company, 
Excel Precast Pte Ltd though suffered a small loss 
as at end March 2006, has managed to return to 
profi tability in June this year.
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WITH
STRENGTH

GAINING THE LEAD

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like 
to express our appreciation to the shareholders, 
bankers, customers and business associates for 
their continuing strong and unwavering support.
A note of special appreciation goes to both Mr Low 
Seow Chye, who will retire at the forthcoming AGM 
as an Independent Director and Ms Toh Soo Hui who 
has tendered her resignation as Executive Director 
from the Board of CSC Holdings Limited with effect 
from 30 June 2006, for their invaluable services and 
contributions to the Group.

Mr See Yen Tarn and Mr Tan Hup Foi were appointed 
to the Board on 11 November 2005 and 3 April 2006 
respectively.  We welcome Mr See and Mr Tan to 
join our team with their wealth of experience in both 
corporate management and regional business.

I also take this opportunity to thank our fellow 
Board members for their counsel and commitment, 
and the management and staff for their dedication 
and contribution without which we would not have 
achieved such improvement.

POH CHEE KUAN
Chief Executive Offi cer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHEE TECK KWONG
Non-Executive Chairman

Joined the Board as an Independent 
Director in March 1998 and was 
appointed as Non-Executive 
Chairman in September 2002.  Mr 
Chee also chairs the Nominating 
Committee and is a member 
of the Remuneration and Audit 
Committees as well as Committee 
of the CSC Executive Share 
Option Scheme 2004 (“CSC ESOS 
Committee”) .  He holds a Bachelor 
of Laws (Hons) degree from The 
University of Singapore and is a 
member of both the Singapore 
Institute of Arbitrators and the 
Singapore Institute of Directors.  
Mr Chee is a Notary Public and a 
Commissioner for Oaths.  He has 
been in legal practice since 1981.  
Mr Chee is also an independent 
director of several other listed 
companies.

LOW SEOW CHYE
Independent Director

Joined the Board as an Independent 
Director in March 1998.  He is the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 
and serves as a member of the 
Nominating Committee.  Mr Low 
is a member of CPA Australia and 
the Institute of Certifi ed Public 
Accountants of Singapore.  He is 
currently the proprietor of his own 
public accounting fi rm, Low Seow 
Chye & Company.

NG SAN TIONG
Non-Executive Director

Joined the Board as a Non-
Executive Director in September 
2002.  Mr Ng is a member of the 
Audit, Risk Management and 
CSC ESOS Committees. He is 
vastly experienced in corporate 
management and business 
development.  He is the Managing 
Director of Tat Hong Holdings Ltd, 
one of the largest heavy equipment 
companies in the region.  He holds a 
Bachelor of Science (Hons) degree 
from the University of Technology 
Loughborough (UK).

TOH SOO HUI
Executive Director

Joined the Group as Executive 
Director in August 2003, responsible 
for the administration / human 
resource management; purchasing 
function; and sale and leasing of 
industrial land. Ms Toh is a member 
of CSC ESOS Committee. She 
holds a Bachelor of Social Science 
(Hons) degree major in Economics 
and a Bachelor of Science degree 
from the National University of 
Singapore.  In addition, she has 
also obtained a Master of Science 
in Management from the London 
School of Economics and Political 
Science.

TAN EE PING
Independent Director

Joined the Board as an Independent 
Director in August 2003.  Mr Tan 
was appointed as Chairman of the 
Remuneration Committee with 
effect from 24 May 2004.  He also 
chairs the CSC ESOS Committee.
Mr Tan runs his own professional 
consulting fi rm, TEP Consultants 
Pte Ltd since 1970.  Mr Tan holds 
a Bachelor of Civil Engineering 
(Hons) degree from the University 
of Malaya.  He is presently an 
adjunct professor at the Nanyang 
Technological University, an 
accredited adjudicator and mediator, 
Vice-Chairman ACCOM, Singapore 
Mediation Centre and a member of 
Regional Panel of Arbitrators and 
Panel member, Strata Title Board.

TEO BENG TECK
Non-Executive Director

Joined the Board as a Non-Executive 
Director in November 2003.  Mr 
Teo is the Chairman of the Risk 
Management Committee. He has 
more than 30 years of experience 
in engineering and construction 
in both public and private sectors.  
He holds a Master of Science in 
Construction Engineering from The 
University of Singapore.  Mr Teo 
is also a Chartered Secretary and 
holds memberships with several 
professional bodies relating to 
engineering, management and 
logistic services. 

SEE YEN TARN
Independent Director

Joined the Board as an Independent 
Director in November 2005.  Mr 
See is a member of the 
Nominating Committee. He 
holds a Bachelor degree in 
Accountancy from the National 
University of Singapore and is 
a member of both Institute of 
Chartered Accountants, England  
and Wales and the Singapore 
Institute of Directors.  Mr See has 
more than 20 years of experience 
in corporate and fi nancial 
management.

TAN HUP FOI
Independent Director

Joined the Board as an Independent 
Director in April 2006.  Mr Tan is a 
member of the Audit Committee. 
He is currently the Chairman of 
Ngee Ann Polytechnic Council.  He 
is also the Honorary Vice President 
of International Association of 
Public Transport (UITP) and Honorary 
Chairman of UITP Asia Pacifi c 
Division and is a Board member 
of the Singapore Corporation of 
Rehabilitative Enterprises and 
National Environment Agency 
respectively.  Mr Tan holds a Bachelor 
degree (Hons) in Engineering from 
the Monash University, Australia 
and a Master of Science (Industrial 
Engineering) from the National 
University of Singapore.

POH CHEE KUAN
Chief Executive Offi cer

Joined the Group as an Executive 
Director in September 1999 and 
was appointed Chief Executive 
Offi cer in August 2001.  Mr Poh sits 
on the Nominating, Remuneration, 
Risk Management and CSC ESOS 
Committees.  He has more than 30 
years of professional and business 
experience in the fi eld of civil/
foundation engineering.  He holds 
a Bachelor of Engineering degree 
from The University of Singapore, a 
Master of Science (Civil Engineering) 
degree from the National University 
of Singapore and a MBA from Brunel 
University–Henley Management 
College (UK).  In addition, Mr Poh 
is also a fellow of the Institute of 
Engineers (Singapore) and the 
American Society of Civil Engineers; 
a Chartered Engineer (UK) and a 
registered Professional Engineer 
(Singapore).
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TAY SEO LONG
Group Financial Controller/
Company Secretary

Mr Tay assumed the position of Group Financial Controller/
Company Secretary in March 2004.  His responsibilities 
include overseeing the Group’s fi nance and corporate 
functions covering fi nancial reporting, treasury, tax, 
corporate secretarial as well as investor relations.

Mr Tay has 30 years of experience in the fi eld of accounting 
and fi nancial management, administration and business 
development.  He obtained a Bachelor degree (Hons) in 
Accountancy from the Nanyang University of Singapore 
and a MBA from the Hull University, UK and is a Member 
of Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants of Singapore.

KEY MANAGEMENT

LIM YEOW BENG
General Manager
(Contracts & Legal)

Mr Lim was appointed the General Manager (Contracts & 
Legal) in January 2003 and is responsible for overseeing 
the contractual and legal aspects of all projects under the 
Group.  He is also currently a Board member of two of 
the Group’s subsidiary companies, namely, CS Geotechnic 
Pte Ltd and Ching Soon Industries Pte Ltd.  Mr Lim 
holds a Diploma in Civil Engineering from the Singapore 
Polytechnic.

LIM CHEE ENG, JIMMY
General Manager/Director, 
CS Bored Pile System Pte Ltd 

Mr Lim joined the Group as Project Manager in December 
1994 and was later promoted to the position of a Senior 
Project Manager.  He was subsequently appointed 
the General Manager of CS Bored Pile System Pte Ltd 
(“CSBP”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, in 
1996 and as a Director of CSBP in 1998.  He is responsible 
for the business operations and management of CSBP.

Mr Lim has more than 22 years of working experience, 
mainly in geotechnical and foundation engineering.  He 
holds a Bachelor degree (Hons) in Engineering (Civil), 
a Master of Science (Civil Engineering) degree and a 
postgraduate Diploma in Business Administration from the 
National University of Singapore.  He is also a registered 
Professional Engineer with the Professional Engineering 
Board, Singapore and a Senior Member of Institute of 
Engineers, Singapore.

KOO CHUNG CHONG
General Manager (Operations), 
Ching Soon Construction Pte Ltd

Mr Koo joined the Group as a Senior Project Engineer in 
July 1996 and he was progressively rose over the years 
to the current position of General Manager (Operations) 
of Ching Soon Construction Pte Ltd (“CSC”), a Group’s 
subsidiary company, responsible for the business 
operations of driven pile, jack-in pile and civil engineering 
works of CSC.  In addition, he holds the appointment of 
Management Representative in the company’s Quality 
Management System.  Mr. Koo holds a Diploma in Civil 
Engineering from the Singapore Polytechnic and a Bachelor 
degree (Hons) in Engineering (Civil & Structural) from the 
University of Sheffi eld, England.

CHONG JONG AN, LAWRENCE
Managing Director, 
THL Engineering Pte Ltd

Mr Chong has been appointed the Managing Director 
of THL Engineering Pte. Ltd. (“THLE”), a Group’s 
subsidiary company since 1994 and is in-charge of the 
overall business operations and management of THLE.  
He has with him, more than 20 years of experience in 
the fi eld of civil engineering, particularly in foundation 
and geotechnical engineering.

Mr Chong obtained a Bachelor of Science (Hons) degree 
in Civil Engineering from the Heriot-Watt University, 
United Kingdom.

HO NGIAP JIONG, JOHN
General Manager/Director, 
Ching Soon Industries Pte Ltd 

Mr Ho joined the Group as the General Manager of 
Ching Soon Industries Pte Ltd (“CSI”) since July 1999.  
He is responsible for the full spectrum of management 
and operations of CSI.  Mr Ho brought with him 
more than 20 years of experience in the construction 
industry and is vastly experienced in many facets of 
the construction industry.  Mr Ho holds a Diploma in 
Production Engineering from Singapore Polytechnic.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TURNOVER BY SEGMENT

TOTAL TURNOVER

Piled foundation works and foundation equipment business          
Steel Fabrication             Land Sale and rental income   
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is mindful of its overall responsibility to shareholders for ensuring that the Group is well guided by its strategic 
objectives so as to deliver long term shareholder value.  The Board is supported by board committees with certain areas 
of responsibilities.  In addition, the Board also aims to present a balanced and fair assessment of the Group’s position 
and prospects in its annual fi nancial statements, results announcements and all announcements on its business and 
operations.

ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) [Principle 3]

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are segregated.

Mr Chee Teck Kwong is presently the Group’s non-executive Chairman; he leads the Company’s compliance with 
guidelines on corporate governance and is free to act independently in the best interests of the Company and its 
shareholders. 

The daily management of the Company and the Group is entrusted to Mr Poh Chee Kuan, the CEO who plays a pivotal 
role in steering the strategic direction and growth of the business.  He also ensures that Board meetings are held when 
necessary and assumes the responsibilities of scheduling and setting agenda.

NOMINATING COMMITTEE (“NC”) [Principles 4 & 5]

The NC comprises Messrs Chee Teck Kwong (Chairman), Low Seow Chye and See Yen Tearn who are independent 
directors and Mr Poh Chee Kuan (CEO).   The NC is responsible for inter alia the following:

• Review of the background, academic and professional qualifications of nominee director for the Company and 
Group subsidiaries.

• Re-nomination of existing directors and re-election by shareholders at every annual general meeting.
• Providing criteria for an objective performance evaluation of the Board.
• Determining the independence of the directors annually.

New directors of the Company and the Group are appointed by way of a Board resolution of the respective companies, 
after the NC makes necessary recommendation to the Board.  According to the Articles of Association of the Company, 
such new directors of the Company shall submit themselves for re-election at the next annual general meeting (“AGM”) 
of the Company. 

The NC held two meetings during the fi nancial year under review.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (“RC”) [Principles 7, 8 & 9]

The RC comprises Messrs Tan Ee Ping (Chairman) and Chee Teck Kwong who are independent directors and Mr Poh 
Chee Kuan (CEO).  The RC has access to external expert advice, if required.

During the fi nancial year, the term of reference of the RC includes, inter alia, the following: 

• Recommendation the Board a framework of remuneration for non-executive and executive directors and key 
executives.

• Review and approval of the remuneration packages of the executive directors and senior executives after taking 
into consideration their responsibilities, skills, expertise and contribution to the Company’s performance and 
the appropriateness of the remuneration packages to attract, retain and motivate the best available executive 
talents. 

The Board of Directors is committed to maintain good standard of corporate governance and has applied the principles 
of the Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”).  This report discusses the Company’s corporate governance 
processes and activities within specifi c reference to the principles set out in the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS [Principles 1, 2, 6 and 10]

The Board is responsible for the Group’s overall business strategies and direction; approval of major projects and fund-
raising exercise; review of fi nancial performance including approval of the release of half year and full year fi nancial 
results; and approve the appointment of Board of directors and key managerial personnel.

The Board meets on a quarterly basis and ad-hoc Board meetings are also convened as and when necessary.  The 
attendance of the directors and the various meetings held during the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2006 is as 
follows: 

Board Meeting Audit Committee Remuneration Committee

Name of Directors No. Held No. Attended No. Held No. Attended No. Held No. Attended

Chee Teck Kwong 3 3 2 2 2 2

Poh Chee Kuan 3 3 NA NA 2 2

Toh Soo Hui (1) 3 2 NA NA NA NA

Low Seow Chye (2) 3 3 2 2 NA NA

Ng San Tiong 3 3 2 2 NA NA

Tan Ee Ping 3 2 NA NA 2 2

Teo Beng Teck 3 2 NA NA NA NA

See Yen Tarn (3) 3 NA NA NA NA NA

Tan Hup Foi (4) 3 NA NA NA NA NA

(1) Resign wef 30 June 2006
(2) Retiring at the forthcoming AGM
(3) Appointed on 11 November 2005
(4) Appointed on 3 April 2006

With the resignation of Ms Toh Soo Hui and the retirement of Mr Low Seow Chye as Directors, the Board will comprise 
seven Directors, all of whom save for the Chief Executive Offi cer (“CEO”) are non-executive and four of whom 
are independent directors. The Board consists of respected individuals from different backgrounds and whose core 
competencies, qualifi cations, skills and experience are extensive and complementary.  Details of the Directors’ academic 
and professional qualifi cations are set out in the Board of Directors’ section of this Annual Report.  The independence 
of each director is reviewed annually by the Nominating Committee (“NC”).

The Board is provided with timely notices and information prior to Board meetings as and when the need arises.  Where 
a physical Board meeting is not possible, the CEO will arrange to personally meet and brief each director before seeking 
the Board’s approval on a particular issue. The Board takes independent professional advice as and when necessary to 
enable it or the independent directors to discharge their responsibilities effectively.

The Company Secretary attends all meetings of the Board and Committees and ensures that Board procedures are 
followed.  The Company Secretary also ensures that requirements of the Companies Act and all other rules and 
regulations of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) are complied with.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

20 21
CSC Holdings Limited Annual  Report  2006

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The main responsibilities of the Committee are:

• Ensure that the Rules of the Scheme are adhered to;
• Select eligible directors and employees of the Group to participate in the Scheme; and
• Determine the number of shares and the exercise price to be offered to each participant taking into consideration, 

the service and performance of the participant.

AUDIT COMMITTEE (“AC”) [Principle 11]

The AC comprises of three independent directors, namely, Messrs Low Seow Chye (Chairman), Chee Teck Kwong, Tan 
Hup Foi and a non-executive director, Mr Ng San Tiong.

The AC’s responsibilities include, inter alia, the following:

• Review of the annual audit plan, internal audit process, the adequacy of internal controls and interested person 
transactions for the Group.

• Review of the scope and results of the audit and cost effectiveness, the independence and objectivity of the 
external auditors annually, and the nomination of their re-appointment as auditors of the Company.

• Review of half year and full year financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.

The AC meets with both the internal and external auditors, without the presence of Management at least once a year.  
During the fi nancial year under review, the AC met twice.

The AC has also conducted a review of all non-audit services provided by the auditors and is satisfi ed that the nature 
and extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT [Principles 12 & 13]

The Board recognises the need to put in place a system of internal controls for companies within the Group, procedures 
and processes to safeguard shareholders’ interests and the Group’s business and assets.  In this regards, the Internal 
Audit function is responsible for identifying defi ciencies in internal control and reports directly to the AC.

The Group outsourced its Internal Audit function to Baker Tilly TFWLCL (“IA”), a professional auditing fi rm.  The 
appointed IA reports directly to the AC and the AC is of the opinion that the appointed IA is adequately resourced with 
qualifi ed personnel to discharge its responsibilities.

During the fi nancial year, the IA conducted its audit reviews and reports its fi ndings and recommendations to the AC.  
The AC reviewed the effectiveness of the key internal controls, including fi nancial, operational and compliance controls 
and risk management on an on-going basis.

The Board is satisfi ed that there are adequate internal controls in the Group.

During the fi nancial period under review, only non-executive directors are paid directors’ fees. The payment of such fees 
is recommended for approval at the AGM of the Company.

The annual remuneration bands of the directors are set out below: 

CSC HOLDINGS LIMITED

Fee* Salary Bonus
Allowances & 

Benefi ts
Total

% % % % %

$250,000 to S$499,999

Poh Chee Kuan - 69 23 8 100

Below S$250,000

Toh Soo Hui - 66 16 18 100

Low Seow Chye 100 - - - 100

Chee Teck Kwong 100 - - - 100

Ng San Tiong 100 - - - 100

Tan Ee Ping 100 - - - 100

Teo Beng Teck 100 - - - 100

See Yen Tarn 100 - - - 100

*  Director’s fees subject to approval at the AGM.

The annual remuneration for key executives is as follows:

Remuneration Band No. of Key Executives

Below $250,000 6

There is no employee related to any director or the CEO, whose remuneration exceeds $150,000 for the fi nancial year 
ended 31 March 2006. 

The remuneration policy for staff adopted by the Company comprises a fi xed component and a variable component.  
The fi xed component is in the form of a base salary.  The variable component is in the form of a variable bonus that is 
linked to the Group and individual performance.  

2 meetings were held during the fi nancial year.

ESOS COMMITTEE (“the Committee”)

The Committee of the CSC Executive Share Option Scheme 2004 (“the Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders 
on 22 July 2004.

The Committee currently comprises of fi ve directors, namely Messrs Tan Ee Ping (Chairman), Chee Teck Kwong, Ng San 
Tiong and Poh Chee Kuan, and Ms Toh Soo Hui.
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INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS (“IPT”) [Rule 907 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual]

The Company has adopted a policy in IPTs and has established procedures to monitor and review such transactions.

The aggregate value of IPT entered into during the fi nancial period under review pursuant to the Shareholders’ Mandate 
obtained under Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual were as follows:

Name of interested person

Aggregate value of all interested person 
transactions during the fi nancial year under 

review  (excluding transactions less than 
$100,000 and transactions conducted under 
shareholders’ mandate pursuant to Rule 920)

Aggregate value of all interested person 
transactions conducted under shareholders’ 
mandate pursuant to Rule 920 (excluding 

transactions less than $100,000)

 Tat Hong HeavyEquipment 
 (Pte) Ltd (1)

 Tat Hong Plant Leasing 
 Pte Ltd (1)  

 Tat Hong Machinery Pte Ltd (1)

 CMC Construction Pte Ltd (2)  

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

S$3,540,000

   S$400,000

   S$909,000

S$1,845,000

Notes:

(1) Tat Hong HeavyEquipment (Pte) Ltd, Tat Hong Plant Leasing Pte Ltd and Tat Hong Machinery Pte Ltd are subsidiaries of Tat Hong 
Holdings Ltd, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

(2) CMC Construction Pte Ltd is a subsidiary of TH Investments Pte Ltd, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS 

1. Introduction

 The Directors’ of CSC Holdings Limited (“the Company”) proposed to renew the Shareholders’ Mandate for 
Interested Person Transactions (“IPT Mandate”) that will enable the Company and its subsidiaries and associated 
company (“CSC Group” or the “Group”), or any of them, to enter into transactions with the Company’s interested 
person (“Interested Person”).

 The approval of shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the renewal of the IPT Mandate will be sought 
at the Annual General Meeting of the company (“AGM”) to be held at No. 2, Tuas South Avenue 2, Singapore 
637601 on 20 July 2006 at 9.00 am.

 The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) takes no responsibility for the accuracy of any 
statements or opinions made in this IPT Mandate.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS [Principles 14 and 15]

The Company adopts the practice of providing adequate and timely disclosure of material information to its shareholders.  
Information of the Company’s fi nancial performance and major business developments are disseminated promptly 
through SGXNET and press releases.

Shareholders are given opportunities and are encouraged to participate in general meetings.  The Board members and 
the management team are present to address any questions that shareholders may have concerning the Company.  The 
external auditors will also be presented to assist the Board in addressing the relevant queries from the shareholders.

RISK MANAGEMENT [Rule 1207(4)(d) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual]

Risk management practices are in place with the Group.  Management regularly reviews the Group’s business and 
operational activities to identify areas of signifi cant business risks as well as measures to control these risks. Management 
also reviews all signifi cant control policies and procedures and highlights all signifi cant matters to the Board and AC. 

The Risks Management Committee (“RMC”), formed in May 2004, comprises three Board members, Mr Teo Beng Teck 
(Chairman), Mr Ng San Tiong and Mr Poh Chee Kuan and Group Financial Controller, Mr Tay Seo Long. The RMC seeks 
to provide further aassurance to the Board and the AC and assist the Board to review risk policies and matters relating 
to the management of risks. The key area of focus for RMC includes:

• Review of tenders and quotations.
• Review of risk management control in project management.
• Evaluation of risks in new business and in new markets.

DEALING IN SECURITIES [Rule 710(2)(b) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual]

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct to provide guidance to key offi cers of the Company and it subsidiaries 
with regard to dealings in the Company’s securities in compliance with the Best Practices Guide on Security Transactions 
of the SGX-ST.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS [Rule 1207(8) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual]

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ Report and the fi nancial statements, no material contracts (including loans) of the 
Company or its subsidiaries involving the interests of the CEO or any director or controlling shareholders subsisting at 
the end of the fi nancial year or have been entered into since the end of the previous fi nancial year. 
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 The IPT Mandate will eliminate the need for the Company to convene separate general meetings on each occasion 
to seek Shareholders’ approval as and when such IPTs with the Interested Persons arise, thereby reducing substantial 
administrative time and expenses associated with the convening of such meetings, without compromising the 
corporate objectives and adversely affecting the business opportunities available to the EAR Group. 

5. Classes of Interested Persons

 The IPT Mandate will apply to transactions described in paragraph 6 below that are carried out with the following 
classes of Interested Persons:

(a) Tat Hong Holdings Ltd,TH Investments Pte Ltd and their associates (as defined in the Listing Manual) but not 
limited to Messrs Ng Chwee Cheng and Ng San Tiong (the “Tat Hong Group”); and  

(b) Mr Ng San Tiong and his associates (as defined in the Listing Manual).

(d) Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and their respective associates.

6. Categories of IPTs

 The IPTs with the Interested Persons as described in paragraph 5 above that will be covered by the IPT Mandate 
are as follows:

(a) General Transactions
 
 This category relates to general transactions (“General Transactions”) on the provision to, or obtaining 

from, Interested Persons of products and services in the ordinary course of the business of the EAR Group.  
The transactions for the supply/receipt of products and/or services to/from Interested Persons are as 
follows:

(i) rental and purchase of machinery/site equipment and accessories, purchase of spare parts and repair 
of machinery by the EAR Group from Interested Persons;

(ii) rental and sale of machinery/site equipment and accessories, sale of spare parts and repair of machinery 
by the EAR Group to Interested Persons;

(iii) provision or receipt of transportation services by the EAR Group to or from Interested Persons;

(iv) rental of office space and land by the EAR Group to or from Interested Persons;

(v) provision or receipt of training services by the EAR Group to or from Interested Persons;

(vi) provision or receipt of foundation work services by EAR Group to or from Interested Persons; and 

(vii) trading of construction materials.

RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

 General information with respect to listing rules of the SGX-ST relating to interested person transactions, including 
meanings of terms such as “associate”, “entity at risk”, “interested person” and “interested person transaction” 
used in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual, is also set out Page 32 of this Annual Report.

2. Rationale for the proposed renewal of IPT Mandate

 It is envisaged that the Group which is considered to be entity at risk within the meaning of Chapter 9 of the 
Listing Manual (“the EAR Group”), or any of them, would, in the ordinary course of their businesses, enter 
into Interested Person Transactions (“IPT or IPTs”) with certain classes of Interested Persons in the categories of 
transactions as set out in paragraphs 5 and 6 below.

 Given that such IPTs will occur with some degree of frequency and may arise at any time, the IPT Mandate is 
intended to facilitate transactions in the normal course of business of CSC Group provided that such IPTs are 
made on normal commercial terms, and are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority 
Shareholders.

3. Scope of IPT Mandate

 The IPT Mandate will cover a range of transactions arising in the ordinary course of business operations of the EAR 
Group as set out in paragraph 6 below.

 The IPT Mandate will not cover any IPT, which has a value below S$100,000 as the threshold, and aggregate 
requirements of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual do not apply to such transactions.

 Transactions by the EAR Group with Interested Persons that do not fall within the ambit of the IPT Mandate 
(including any renewal thereof) will be subject to the relevant provisions of Chapter 9 and/or other applicable 
provisions of the Listing Manual.

4. Benefits of IPT Mandate

 The IPT Mandate is intended to facilitate specified categories of IPTs in the normal course of business of the EAR 
Group which are transacted, from time to time, with the specified classes of Interested Persons, provided that 
they are carried out on the EAR Group’s normal commercial terms, and are not prejudicial to the interests of the 
Company and its minority Shareholders.

 Where the IPT relates to the purchase/sale of products and supply/receipt of services from Interested Persons, the 
EAR Group will benefit from having access, where applicable, to competitive quotes from, or transacting with, 
Interested Persons, and may also derive savings in terms of cost efficiencies and greater economies of scale in 
its transactions with Interested Persons.  By having the IPT relating to corporate support transactions with the 
Interested Persons, the EAR Group will enjoy sharing of resources and economies of scale and eliminate duplication 
of efforts.  Where the IPT relates to treasury transactions, the EAR Group will benefit from the competitive rates or 
quotes from its Interested Persons, thus leveraging on the financial strength and credit standing or the Interested 
Persons. 
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(aa) in determining whether the price and terms offered by the Interested Person are fair and 
reasonable and comparable to those offered by unrelated third parties to the EAR Group for 
the same or substantially similar type of product or service, the management of the relevant 
company of the EAR Group will obtain at least two other quotations from unrelated third 
party vendors or suppliers for similar or substantially similar type of product or service as bases 
for comparison.  The management will then submit the recommendation to a director of the 
relevant company of the EAR Group (who has no interest, direct or indirect, in the transactions) 
for approval; and

(bb) where it is impractical or not possible for such quotations to be obtained (for example, there 
are no unrelated third party vendors or suppliers of similar type of product or service, or the 
product or service is proprietary), a director of the relevant company of the EAR Group (who has 
no interest, direct or indirect, in the transaction) will ensure that the price and terms offered to 
the EAR Group are fair and reasonable and that the terms of supply from the Interested Persons 
will (where applicable) be in accordance with industry norms.

(ii)  Sale of Products or Services

 The review procedures applicable to the sale of machinery/site equipment and accessories, construction 
materials, spare parts, repair of machinery, and receipt of foundation work services, transportation 
services and training services are as follows: 

(aa) selling prices will be determined with reference to a standard price list in relation to sales of such 
products or provision of such services to unrelated third parties (“Standard Price”).  Should there 
be any variation between the selling price and the Standard Price, the extent to which the selling 
price deviates from the Standard Price and the reasons for such variation will be analysed and 
shall be subject to the approval of a director of the relevant company of the EAR Group (who 
has no interest, direct or indirect, in the transaction).

(bb) where the Standard Price is not available due to the unique nature of the product to be sold 
or service to be provided, a director of the relevant company of the EAR Group (who has no 
interest, direct or indirect, in the transaction) and subject to the relevant approval levels as set 
out in part (iv) below, will determine the pricing of such products to be sold or services to be 
provided to an Interested Person in accordance with industry norms and be consistent with the 
usual business practices and pricing policies of the relevant company of the EAR Group.

(iii) Rental of Office Space and Land

 The review procedures are as follows:

(aa) a director of the relevant company of the EAR Group (who has no interest, direct or indirect, 
in the transaction) will determine that the rental arrangements between the EAR Group and 
the Interested Persons, including but not limited to, the rental rates and terms offered to/by 
the Interested Persons are comparable to the then prevailing market rates and terms for other 
properties within its vicinity of similar or comparable standing and facilities, after taking into 
account the tenure of the lease, the areas of the leased premises and any other factor which 
may affect the rental rates or terms of the lease;

RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b) Corporate Support Transactions

 This category relates to corporate management and support services (“Corporate Support Transactions”).  
The EAR Group may, from time to time, receive corporate management and support services from its 
Interested Persons. These services include computer support, personnel, administration and/or accounting 
services.

(c) Treasury Transactions

 Treasury transactions (“Treasury Transactions”) comprise the borrowing of funds from any Interested 
Persons.

7. Review Procedures for IPTs

 In general, the EAR Group has internal control procedures to ensure that the IPTs are undertaken on normal 
commercial terms, and are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority Shareholders.  Save for 
the Corporate Support Transactions which are carried out on a cost reimbursement basis, all IPTs are to be carried 
out:

(a) at the prevailing market rates/prices of the services or product providers (including, where applicable, 
preferential rates/prices/discounts accorded to a class of customers or for bulk/long term purchases, where 
the giving of such preferential rates/prices/discounts are commonly practised within the applicable industry 
and may be extended to unrelated third parties, provided that there is no difference in terms of preferential 
rates/prices/discounts accorded to unrelated third parties vis-à-vis interested persons), or otherwise in 
accordance with applicable industry norms; and 

(b) on terms which, in relation to services or products to be provided to an Interested Person, are no more 
favourable to the Interested Person than the usual commercial terms extended to unrelated third parties; or 
in relation to services or products to be obtained from an Interested Person, are no more favourable than 
those extended to the EAR Group by unrelated third parties.

 In particular, the following review procedures have been established by the Company under the IPT Mandate:

(a) General Transactions

(i) Purchase of Products or Services 

 The review procedures applicable to the purchase of machinery/site equipment and accessories, 
construction materials, spare parts, repair of machinery, and receipt of foundation work services, 
transportation services and training services are as follows:
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(c) Treasury Transactions

 In respect of borrowing of funds from Interested Person by the EAR Group, the Company will require 
quotations to be obtained from such Interested Person and at least two banks within the same country 
for loans of an equivalent amount and for an equivalent period.  The EAR Group will only borrow 
funds from such Interested Person provided that the terms quoted are no less favourable than the 
terms quoted by such banks. The approval of the CEO or Executive Director (who shall not be an 
Interested Person) will be required prior to such borrowing of such funds. 

 In addition, where the aggregate value of funds loaned to the EAR Group shall at any time exceed 
the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the Company (based on its latest audited accounts), each 
subsequent amount of funds loaned to the EAR Group shall require the prior approval of the Audit 
Committee.

 
(d) Other Review Procedures

 In addition to the guidelines set out above, the Company will maintain a register of transactions carried 
out with Interested Persons (recording the basis, including the quotations obtained to support such 
basis, on which they are entered into), and the Company’s annual internal audit plan will incorporate 
a review of IPTs entered into in the relevant financial year pursuant to the IPT Mandate.  The internal 
auditors shall, on a half-yearly basis, perform a compliance review on IPTs entered into with Interested 
Persons during the preceding half-year and forward a half-yearly report to the Audit Committee on 
such transactions.

 
 The Company shall, on a half-yearly basis, report to the Audit Committee on all IPTs, and the basis 

of such transactions, entered into with Interested Persons during the preceding half-year.  The Audit 
Committee shall review such IPTs at its half-yearly meetings except where such IPTs are required under 
the review procedures to be approved by the Audit Committee prior to the entry thereof. The Audit 
Committee shall also review the half-yearly internal audit report.

 If during the periodic reviews by the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee is of the view that the 
guidelines and review procedures for IPTs have become inappropriate or insufficient in the event of 
changes to the nature of, or manner in which, the business activities of the EAR Group or the Interested 
Persons are conducted, the Company will revert to the Shareholders for a fresh shareholders mandate 
based on new guidelines and review procedures so that IPTs will be carried out on normal commercial 
terms and will not be prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority Shareholders.

 For the purposes of the above review and approval process, any Director, who is not considered 
independent for purposes of the IPT Mandate and/or any IPT, will abstain from voting in relation to any 
respective resolution, and/or abstain from participating in the Audit Committee’s decision during its 
review of the established review procedures for the IPTs or during its review or approval of any IPT.

RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(bb) where it is impractical or not possible for such prevailing market rates and terms for other 
properties within its vicinity of similar or comparable standing and facilities to be obtained, a 
director of the relevant company of the EAR Group (who has no interest, direct or indirect, in 
the transaction) will determine whether the rental rates and terms accorded to the EAR Group 
are fair and reasonable and, where applicable, are in accordance with industry norms; and

(cc) any change in the rental arrangements between the EAR Group and the Interested Persons is 
subject to the review of the Audit Committee.

(iv) In addition, to streamline the review procedures for general transactions, all general transactions will 
be approved by the authorised persons in the manner hereinafter stated:

Value of each transaction Approval level

Greater than or equal to S$100,000 but less 
than or equal to 3% of the Company’s latest 
audited NTA

The approval of the head of the relevant company in 
the EAR Group and verifi cation and confi rmation by 
the Chief Executive Offi cer (“CEO”) (who shall not 
be an Interested Persons in respect of the particular 
transaction) prior to making any commitment to the 
transaction

Greater than 3% but less than or equal to 5% 
of the Company’s latest audited NTA

The approval of the CEO or Executive Director 
(who shall not be an Interested Persons in respect 
of the particular transaction) prior to making any 
commitment to the transaction

Greater than 5% of the Company’s latest 
audited NTA 

The approval of the majority of the members of the 
Audit Committee prior to making any commitment to 
the transaction

 (b) Corporate Support Transactions

 The fees in consideration for corporate management and support services received will be on a cost 
reimbursement basis and are subject to adjustment at the end of the relevant financial year for any 
variation in services provided.  

 The invoice issued by the Interested Person to the EAR Group, which indicates the basis of the cost 
reimbursement, for the provision of corporate management and the internal auditors on a half-yearly 
basis will examine support services. In addition, a transaction exceeding S$120,000 in value must be 
approved by the Audit Committee prior to its entry, and any transaction which is equal to or less than 
S$120,000 in value must be approved by the CEO or Executive Director of the Company (who shall 
not be an Interested Person in respect of the particular transaction) prior to its entry, and reviewed by 
the Audit Committee on a half-yearly basis.
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12. Independent directors’ recommendation

 The Independent directors having considered, inter alia, the terms, the rationale and the benefits of the IPT 
Mandate, are of the view that the IPT Mandate is in the interests of the Company and accordingly recommend 
that Shareholders vote in favour of the Resolution 6 relating to the renewal of the IPT Mandate at the forthcoming 
AGM.

13. Directors’ responsibility statement

 The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given herein 
and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the facts stated 
herein are fair and accurate and that there are no material facts the omission of which would make any statement 
in this report misleading.

GENERAL INFORMATION RELATING TO CHAPTER 9 OF THE LISTING MANUAL

1. Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual

1.1 Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual governs transactions between a listed company, as well as transactions 
by its subsidiaries and associated companies that are considered to be “at risk”, with the listed company’s 
interested persons.

1.2 Except for any transaction which is below S$100,000 in value and certain transactions which, by reason of 
the nature of such transactions, are not considered to put the listed company at risk to its interested person 
and hence are excluded from the ambit of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual. When this Chapter applies to 
a transaction and the value of the transaction alone or on aggregation with other transactions conducted 
with the interested person during the financial year reaches or exceeds certain materiality thresholds (which 
are based on the listed company¹s latest consolidated NTA), the listed company is required to make an 
immediate announcement, or to make an immediate announcement and seek its shareholders¹ approval 
for the transaction.  In particular, Shareholders¹ approval is required for an interested person transaction of 
a value equal to, or exceeding:

(a) 5% of the listed company¹s latest audited consolidated NTA (Note); or

(b) 5% of the listed company¹s latest audited consolidated NTA, when aggregated with the values of 
all other transactions entered into with the same interested person (as such term is construed under 
Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual) during the same financial year.

1.3 Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual, however, allows a listed company to seek a mandate from its shareholders 
for recurrent transactions of a revenue or trading nature or those necessary for its day-to-day operations such 
as the purchase and sale of supplies and materials (but not for the purchase or sale of assets, undertakings 
or businesses) which may be carried out with the listed company¹s interested persons. A general mandate 
is subject to annual renewal.

RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

8. Expiry and renewal of the IPT Mandate

 If approved by the Shareholders at the AGM, the IPT Mandate will take effect from the date of receipt of the 
Shareholders’ approval, and will (unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting) continue in force 
until the next AGM of the Company and will apply to IPTs entered into from the date of receipt of Shareholders’ 
approval.  Approval from Shareholders will be sought for the renewal of the IPT Mandate at each subsequent 
annual general meeting, subject to review by the Audit Committee of its continued application to the IPTs.

9. Disclosures

 Pursuant to Rule 920(a) of the Listing Manual, (a) the Company will disclose in its annual report the aggregate 
value of IPTs conducted pursuant to the IPT Mandate during the financial year as well as in the annual reports for 
subsequent financial years that the IPT Mandate continues in force.  In addition, the Company will announce the 
aggregate value of transactions conducted pursuant to the IPT Mandate for the financial periods that it is required 
to report pursuant to Rule 905 of the Listing Manual within the time required for the announcement of such 
report.  These disclosures will be in the form set out in Rule 907 of the Listing Manual.

10. Statement of the Audit Committee

 The Audit Committee of the Company confirms that:

(a) methods and procedures for determining the transaction prices of the IPTs conducted under the IPT Mandate 
have not changed since the last approval of the IPT Mandate on 1 August 2003; and

(b) the methods and procedures referred to in (a) above continue to be sufficient to ensure that these IPTs will 
be carried out on normal commercial terms and will not be prejudicial to the interests of the Company and 
its minority Shareholders.

11. Directors’ and substantial shareholders’ interest

 The interest of the directors’ and substantial shareholders’ interests of the Company as at 21 April 2006 and as at 
15 June 2006 respectively can be found on Pages 33 and 91 of this Annual Report.

 Directors of the Company will abstain from voting their shareholdings in the Company, if any, on Resolution 6 
relating to the renewal of the IPT Mandate at the forthcoming AGM.

 Controlling Shareholders and their respective associates, being Interested Persons under the IPT Mandate, will 
abstain from voting their respective shareholdings in the Company on Resolution 6 relating to the renewal of the 
IPT Mandate at the forthcoming AGM.
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We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of the Group and of the Company together with the 
audited fi nancial statements for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2006.

Directors

The directors in offi ce at the date of this report are as follows:

Chee Teck Kwong (Chairman)
Poh Chee Kuan (Chief Executive Offi cer)
Low Seow Chye
Ng San Tiong
Toh Soo Hui
Tan Ee Ping
Teo Beng Teck
See Yen Tarn (Appointed on 11 November 2005)
Tan Hup Foi (Appointed on 3 April 2006)

Directors’ Interests

According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the 
Act), particulars of interests of directors who held offi ce at the end of the fi nancial year in shares and debentures in the 
Company and in related corporations are as follows:

Holdings in the name
of the director, 

spouse or infant children

Other holdings in which
the director is deemed to

have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Ordinary shares fully paid*
The Company
Ng San Tiong 400,000 400,000 207,334,000 478,405,017

Holding Company
Chwee Cheng & Sons Pte Ltd

Ng San Tiong 1,583,022 1,583,022 5,994,580 5,994,580

* All ordinary shares no longer have a par value. The concept of par value has been abolished under the Companies 
(Amendment) Act 2005 with effect from 30 January 2006.

By virtue of Section 7 of the Act, Ng San Tiong is deemed to have an interest in the shares of the wholly owned 
subsidiaries of the Company at the beginning and at the end of the fi nancial year.

Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held offi ce at the end of the fi nancial year had interests in shares or 
debentures of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning or at the end of the fi nancial year.

There were no changes in any of the above mentioned interests in the Company between the end of the fi nancial year 
and 21 April 2006.

Directors’ Report

2. Definitions

For the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual: 

(a) an “entity at risk” means: 

(i) the listed company;

(ii) a subsidiary of the listed company that is not listed on the SGX-ST or an approved exchange;

(iii) an associated company of the listed company that is not listed on the SGX-ST or an approved exchange, 
provided that the listed company and/or its subsidiaries (“listed group”), or the listed group and its 
interested person(s), has control over the associated company; 

(b) an “interested person” means a director, chief executive officer or controlling shareholder of the listed 
company or an associate of any such director, chief executive officer or controlling shareholder;

(c) an “associate” means:

 in relation to an interested person who is a director, chief executive officer or controlling shareholders 
includes:-

(i) the spouse, child, adopted child, step-child, sibling and parent (“immediate family”) of such director, 
chief executive officer or controlling shareholder;

(ii) the trustees of any trust of which the director/his immediate family, the chief executive officer/his 
immediate family or the controlling shareholders/his immediate family is a beneficiary or, in the case 
of a discretionary trust, is a discretionary object; and

(iii) any company in which the director/his immediate family, the chief executive officer/his immediate 
family or the controlling shareholders/his immediate family together (directly or indirectly) have an 
interest of 30% or more; and

(iv) where a controlling shareholder being a corporation, its subsidiary or holding company or fellow 
subsidiary or a company in which it and/or they have (directly or indirectly) an interest of 30% or 
more.

(d) an “approved exchange” means a stock exchange that has rules which safeguard the interest of 
shareholders against interested person transactions according to similar principles as Chapter 9;

(e) an “interested person transaction” means a transaction between an entity at risk and an interested 
person; and

(f) a “transaction” includes the provision or receipt of financial assistance; the acquisition, disposal or leasing 
of assets; the provision or receipt of services; the issuance or subscription of securities; the granting of or 
being granted options; and the establishment of joint ventures or joint investments, whether or not entered 
into in the ordinary course of business, and whether entered into directly or indirectly.

Note: 

Based on the latest audited consolidated accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2006, 
the NTA of the Group amounts to S$53,292,208.  Accordingly, in relation to the Company, for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing 
Manual, in the current fi nancial year 5% of the Company¹s consolidated NTA amounts to S$2,664,610.
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The Audit Committee also reviewed the following:

• assistance provided by the Company’s officers to the internal and external auditors;

• adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function;

• report of the internal auditor on the Group’s internal control system;

• annual and half-year financial statements of the Group and the Company prior to their submission to the directors 
of the Company for adoption;

• independence of the external auditors of the Company and the nature and extent of the non-audit services 
provided by the external auditors; and

• interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange).

The Audit Committee has full access to management and is given the resources required for it to discharge its functions.  
It has full authority and discretion to invite any director or executive offi cer to attend its meetings.  The Audit Committee 
also recommends the appointment of the external auditors and reviews the level of audit and non-audit fees.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the independence of the external auditors as required under Section 206(1A) of the 
Companies Act and determined that the external auditors were independent in carrying out the audit of the fi nancial 
statements.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the auditors, KPMG, be nominated for re-
appointment as auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Auditors

The auditors, KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

 
Chee Teck Kwong Poh Chee Kuan
Chairman Chief Executive Offi cer

24 June 2006

Directors’ Report

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the fi nancial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose 
objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefi ts by means of the 
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous fi nancial year, in the normal course of business, the Company and its related corporations 
entered into transactions with a shareholder and companies in which a director has substantial interests as disclosed 
in notes 19, 23 and 39 to the fi nancial statements.  However, the directors have neither received nor become entitled 
to receive any benefi t arising out of these transactions other than those to which they are ordinarily entitled to as 
shareholders of these companies.  In addition, fees amounting to $24,000 and $10,000 were paid to a director and a 
fi rm respectively of which a director is a member as disclosed in note 31 to the fi nancial statements.

Except as disclosed above and for salaries, bonuses and fees and those benefi ts that are disclosed in this report and in 
note 32 to the fi nancial statements, since the end of the last fi nancial year, no director has received or become entitled 
to receive a benefi t by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a 
fi rm of which he is a member or with a company in which he has a substantial fi nancial interest.

Share Options/Warrants

During the fi nancial year, one warrant was exercised and the number of shares issued was increased from 889,913,560 
to 889,913,561. The warrants expired on 27 April 2005.

Except as disclosed above, there were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries under share options or 
warrants as at the end of the fi nancial year.

During the fi nancial year, there were no new warrants issued.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee during the year and at the date of this report are:

• Low Seow Chye (Chairman), independent director

• Chee Teck Kwong, independent director

• Ng San Tiong, non-executive director

• Tan Hup Foi, independent director (appointed on 3 April 2006)

The Audit Committee performs the functions specifi ed by Section 201B of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, the Listing 
Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and the Code of Corporate Governance.

The Audit Committee held two meetings since the last directors’ report.  In performing its functions, the Audit 
Committee met with the Company’s external and internal auditors to discuss the scope of their work, the results of 
their examination and evaluation of the Company’s internal accounting control system.

Directors’ Report
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We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of CSC Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 March 2006 as 
set out on pages 38 to 88. These fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s directors.  Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
fi nancial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifi cant estimates made 
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion:

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of 
the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the 
Act) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group 
and of the Company as at 31 March 2006 and of the results and cash flows of the Group and of the changes in 
equity of the Group and of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries 
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act.

KPMG
Certifi ed Public Accountants

Singapore
24 June 2006

Report of the Auditors to the Members of
CSC Holdings Limited

In our opinion:

(a) the financial statements set out on pages 38 to 88  are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2006 and of the results and cash flows of the Group 
and of the changes in equity of the Group and of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these fi nancial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Chee Teck Kwong
Chairman

Poh Chee Kuan
Chief Executive Offi cer

24 June 2006

Statement by Directors
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Group Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts (secured) 20 1,961,814 1,117,519 931,234  -

Trade and other payables 26 34,489,668 26,263,085 5,204,852 1,775,511
Excess of progress billings over 

construction-work-in-progress 27 2,091,366 2,326,529  -  -
Loan from a shareholder 23 1,107,189 1,739,490  -  -
Current portion of obligations under 

fi nance leases 24 2,605,277 1,194,354  -  -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

(secured) 25 4,647,615 3,977,746 1,040,000  -
Provision for taxation 438,154 605,728  -  -

47,341,083 37,224,451 7,176,086 1,775,511

Total liabilities 64,228,936 53,855,687 10,556,086 6,955,927

Total equity and liabilities 117,835,100 102,111,911 54,393,289 51,450,003

Balance Sheets
as at 31 March 2006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

Group Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 15,432,284 38,764,314  -  -

Lease prepayment 4 1,007,359 1,259,199  -  -

Land held for development 5 4,642,926 4,642,926  -  -

Investment in subsidiaries 6  -  - 29,751,961 16,391,007

Interest in an associate 7 2,152,519 2,165,870 1,000,000 1,000,000

Other investments 8 16,491 17,527  -  -

Club membership 12,000 12,000  -  -

Goodwill on consolidation 9 313,956 313,956  -  -

Deferred tax assets 10 615,074 1,170,404  -  -

Long term progress billings receivables 11 1,638,554 3,449,860  -  -

25,831,163 51,796,056 30,751,961 17,391,007

Assets classifi ed as held for sale 12 23,961,992  -  -  -

Current assets
Inventories 13 14,292,108 9,486,001  -  -

Land held for sale 14 10,478,671 10,465,188  -  -

Progress billings receivables 11 26,793,661 20,622,529  -  -

Trade and other receivables 15 10,611,552 6,111,122 23,308,811 33,882,119

Loan to a related company 19 315,000  -  -  -

Cash and cash equivalents 20 5,550,953 3,631,015 332,517 176,877

68,041,945 50,315,855 23,641,328 34,058,996

Total assets 117,835,100 102,111,911 54,393,289 51,450,003

Equity attributable to equity holders of 
the parent

Share capital 21 32,743,609 8,899,136 32,743,609 8,899,136

Reserves 22 19,133,876 39,357,088 11,093,594 35,594,940

51,877,485 48,256,224 43,837,203 44,494,076

Minority interests 1,728,679  -  -  -

Total equity 53,606,164 48,256,224 43,837,203 44,494,076

Non-current liabilities

Loan from a shareholder 23  - 575,895  -  -

Obligations under fi nance leases 24 6,619,088 2,925,092  -  -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

(secured) 25 10,217,874 13,130,249 3,380,000 5,180,416
Trade payables 50,891  -  -  -

16,887,853 16,631,236 3,380,000 5,180,416

Balance Sheets
as at 31 March 2006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year Ended 31 March 2006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

Group

Note 2006 2005

$ $

Revenue 30 107,251,687 76,914,687

Cost of sales (93,266,168) (66,183,395)

Gross profi t 13,985,519 10,731,292

Other operating income 855,007 202,099

Distribution expenses (123,584) (92,176)

Administrative expenses (716,243) (590,155)

Operating expenses (7,325,847) (6,799,361)

Finance costs (1,872,776) (1,502,785)

Share of results of associate (13,351) 373,001

Profi t from operations before taxation 31 4,788,725 2,321,915

Income tax expense 33 (408,143) (226,047)

Profi t for the year 4,380,582 2,095,868

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 3,796,200 2,095,868

Minority interest 584,382  -

Profi t for the year 4,380,582 2,095,868

Earnings Per Share (cents)

Basic 34 (a)  0.43  0.24

Fully diluted 34 (b)  0.43  0.24

Consolidated Profi t and Loss Account
Year Ended 31 March 2006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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2006 2005

$ $

Operating activities

Profi t from operations before taxation 4,788,725 2,321,915

Adjustments for:

Allowances made/(reversed) for:

 - Inventory obsolescence 36,000 (375,916)

  - Foreseeable losses 847,522 388,124

  - Doubtful trade receivables 69,695 (9,151)

Amortisation of:

 - Goodwill  - 129,900

   - Discount on loan stock 1,284 30,868

  - Lease prepayment 251,840 251,840

Depreciation 2,432,533 2,617,925

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of plant and equipment (122,538) 32,664

Interest income (44,314) (13,462)

Interest expenses 1,696,473 1,471,539

Impairment loss on other investments  - 8,284

Impairment loss on investments available-for-sale 1,036  -

Loss on redemption of loan stock  - 39,341
Net gain on remeasurement of long term progress billings receivables at fair 

values through profi t and loss (82,320)  -
Share of results of associate 13,351 (373,001)

Operating profi t before working capital changes 9,889,287 6,520,870

Changes in working capital:

Inventories 1,142,248 (267,660)

Land held for sale (13,484)  -

Trade, progress billings and other receivables (10,087,304) 6,343,505

Trade and other payables 8,423,594 (3,610,898)

Loan to a related company (315,000)  -

Cash generated from operations 9,039,341 8,985,817

Income taxes paid (27,390) (110,953)

Interest received 44,314 13,462

Interest paid (1,853,531) (1,608,572)

Cash fl ows from operating activities 7,202,734 7,279,754

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended 31 March 2006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

Note
Share
capital

Share 
premium

Capital 
reserve

Accumulated 
losses Total

$ $ $ $ $

Company

At 1 April 2004 8,899,136 23,844,473 18,168,479 (5,755,601) 45,156,487

Loss for the year/Total recognised 
income and expenses for the year  -  -  - (662,411) (662,411)

At 31 March 2005 8,899,136 23,844,473 18,168,479 (6,418,012) 44,494,076

At 1 April 2005 8,899,136 23,844,473 18,168,479 (6,418,012) 44,494,076

Loss for the year  -  -  - (656,873) (656,873)

Transfer of capital reserve on expiry 
of warrants 21  -  - (370,208) 370,208 -

Total recognised income and 
expenses for the year  -  - (370,208) (286,665) (656,873)

Issue of share via exercise of 
warrant 21  *  ** - - ***

Transfer from share
premium upon implementation 
of the Companies (Amendment) 
Act 2005 21 23,844,473 (23,844,473) - -  -

At 31 March 2006 32,743,609  - 17,798,271 (6,704,677) 43,837,203

*  Representing $0.01
**  Representing $0.16
***  Representing $0.17

Statement of Changes in Equity
Year Ended 31 March 2006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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These notes form an integral part of the fi nancial statements.

The fi nancial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 24 June 2006.

1 Domicile and Activities

 CSC Holdings Limited (the Company) is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and has its registered office at 
No. 2, Tuas South Avenue 2, Singapore 637601.

 The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.  The principal activities of the subsidiaries are 
set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

 
 The directors consider Chwee Cheng & Sons Pte Ltd, a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore, to be 

the holding company during the financial year. 

 The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 relate to the Company and its subsidiaries 
together (referred to as the Group) and the Group’s interests in an associate.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) including 
related Interpretations promulgated by the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance.

 During the financial year, the Group adopted the following new/revised FRSs which are relevant to its 
operations:

 FRS 1 (revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
 FRS 2 (revised) Inventories
 FRS 8 (revised) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
 FRS 10 (revised) Events After the Balance Sheet Date
 FRS 16 (revised) Property, Plant and Equipment
 FRS 17 (revised) Leases
 FRS 21 (revised) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
 FRS 24 (revised) Related Party Disclosures
 FRS 27 (revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
 FRS 28 (revised) Investment in Associates
 FRS 32 (revised) Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
 FRS 33 (revised) Earnings Per Share
 FRS 36 (revised) Impairment of Assets
 FRS 38 (revised) Intangible Assets
 FRS 39  Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
 FRS 102  Share-based Payment
 FRS 103  Business Combinations
 FRS 105  Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2006 2005

$ $

Investing activities

Purchase of plant and equipment (1,630,396) (1,955,999)

Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment 733,726 92,643

Purchase of land held for development  - (34,783)

Increase in fi xed deposits (31,185) (13,462)

Cash fl ows from investing activities (927,855) (1,911,601)

Financing activities

Repayment of loan from shareholder (1,208,196) (689,966)

Repayment of bank loans (2,243,789) (3,524,934)

Repayment of fi nance lease obligations (1,837,732) (1,779,150)

Proceeds from issue of shares to a minority shareholder 59,296  -
Changes in cash held in trustee account for redemption

of loan stock 18,556 1,202,063
Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities (5,211,865) (4,791,987)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,063,014 576,166

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 992,219 416,053

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,055,233 992,219

Comprising:

Cash and bank balances 5,550,953 3,631,015

Bank overdrafts (secured) (1,961,814) (1,117,519)

3,589,139 2,513,496

Cash held in trustee account for redemption of loan stock 20  - (18,556)

Fixed deposits pledged as security for bank facilities 20 (1,533,906) (1,502,721)

2,055,233 992,219

During the fi nancial year, the Group acquired plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of $3,673,683 (2005: 
$4,021,041) of which $2,043,287 (2005: $2,065,042) were acquired by means of fi nance lease.  Cash payments of 
$1,630,396 (2005: $1,955,999) were made to purchase plant and equipment.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended 31 March 2006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

 The results of the associates are included in the Company’s profit and loss account to the extent of dividends 
received and receivable, provided the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established before the balance 
sheet date.  The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the total recognised gains and 
losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date that significant influence commences until the 
date that significant influence ceases.  When the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the 
associate, the carrying amount is fully written down and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the 
extent that the Group has incurred obligations in respect of the associate.  Where the audited financial statements 
are not available, the Group’s share is based on unaudited financial statements.  Any differences between the 
unaudited financial statements and audited financial statements obtained subsequently are adjusted for in the 
following year.

 Transactions eliminated on consolidation

 All significant intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains are eliminated on consolidation.  Unrealised 
gains resulting from transactions with associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the 
enterprise.  Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there 
is no evidence of impairment.

 Disposals

 On disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill not previously amortised 
through the profit and loss account or which had previously been dealt with as a movement in Group reserves is 
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

 Owned assets

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except 
for certain plant and machinery which are stated at their revalued amounts.  The revalued amount is the fair 
value determined on the basis of existing use at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation.

 The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of 
production overheads.

 Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

 Any increase in revaluation is credited to asset revaluation reserve unless it offsets a previous decrease in value 
recognised in the profit and loss account.  A decrease in value is recognised in the profit and loss account where 
it exceeds the increase previously recognised in the asset revaluation reserve.

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

 The effects of adopting the new/revised FRSs in 2006 are set out in note 35.

 The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars, unless otherwise stated.  They are prepared on the 
historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are stated at fair value.

 Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less 
costs to sell.

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of 
making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

 Judgements made by management in the application of FRSs that have a significant effect on the financial 
statements and in arriving at estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the following year are 
discussed in note 42.

2.2 Functional currency

 The functional currency of the Company is the Singapore dollar.  As sales and purchases are denominated primarily 
in Singapore dollars and receipts for operations are usually retained in Singapore dollars, the directors are of the 
opinion that the Singapore dollar reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances 
relevant to the Company.

2.3 Consolidation

 Subsidiaries

 Subsidiaries are those companies controlled by the Company.  Control exists when the Company has the power, 
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of a company so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities.

 Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment losses.  The financial 
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control 
commences until the date that control ceases.

 Associates

 Associates are companies in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and 
operating policies.

 Investments in associates are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment losses.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

 Foreign entities

 The Group’s foreign entities are not considered an integral part of the Company’s operations.  The assets and 
liabilities of foreign entities, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated 
to Singapore dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.  The results of foreign entities are 
translated at the average exchange rates for the year.  Exchange differences arising on translation are recognised 
directly in equity.

2.8 Land held for development

 Land held for development is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of land held for development 
includes the purchase price of land and related expenditure, which are necessary to get the land ready for 
development.  Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less anticipated cost of disposal.

2.9 Land held for sale

 Land held for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost of land held for sale includes 
purchase price of land and related expenditure which are necessary to get the land ready for resale.  Net realisable 
value represents the estimated selling price less anticipated cost of disposal.

2.10 Investments

 Investment in entities over which the Group does not have control, joint-control or significant influence are 
classified as available-for-sale investments and are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being 
recognised directly in equity.  The exceptions are impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on 
monetary items, which are recognised in the profit and loss account.  When these investments are derecognised, 
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in the profit and loss account.

 Where these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised 
in the profit and loss account.

 The fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale is determined using the market bid prices of quoted 
investments at the balance sheet date.  Where these investments do not have quoted market prices in an active 
market and other methods of determining fair value do not result in a reasonable estimate, they are stated at cost 
less impairment losses.

 Investments classified as available-for-sale investments are recognised by the Group on the date it commits to 
purchase the investments, and derecognised on the date a sale is committed.

 Prior to 1 April 2005, equity securities held for long term were stated at cost less allowance for diminution in 
value which, in the opinion of the directors, were other than temporary.  Equity securities held for short term were 
stated at lower of cost market value on an item by item basis.  Any changes in carrying amounts were included 
in the profit and loss account. The effect of the change in the accounting policy is not material to the Group’s 
financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

 Leased assets

 Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
finance leases.  Plant and equipment acquired by finance leases is stated at an amount equal to the lower of its 
fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.  Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction 
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance 
charges are charged directly against income.  Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the 
economic useful life of the asset and the lease term.

 Depreciation

 Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis so as to write off items of property, plant and equipment and 
major components that are accounted for separately over their estimated useful lives as follows:

 Leasehold building 60 years
 Leasehold land and properties over the period of lease not exceeding 60 years
 Plant and machinery 15 years
 Office equipment, renovations and furniture and fittings 3 to 5 years
 Motor vehicles and containers 5 or 10 years

 The useful lives and residual values, if not insignificant, are reassessed annually.

2.5 Lease prepayment

 Lease prepayment comprises premium paid in respect of a leasehold property.  Amortisation is provided on a 
straight-line basis over the lease period of 14 years.

2.6 Goodwill on consolidation

 Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s 
share of the identifiable net assets acquired.  Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
impairment losses.  Goodwill on the acquisition of associates is presented together with the investment in an 
associate.  Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units and is tested annually for impairment (see accounting 
policy 2.15).

2.7 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Singapore dollars at rates of exchange 
approximate to those ruling at the balance sheet date.  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at rates 
ruling on transaction dates.  Translation differences are included in the profit and loss account.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

 Goodwill are tested for impairment annually and as and when indicators of impairment are identified.

 Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount 
of any goodwill allocated to cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in 
the unit on a pro rata basis.

 Calculation of recoverable amount

 The recoverable amount of the Group’s receivables carried at amortised cost is calculated as the present value 
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate 
computed at initial recognition of these financial assets).  Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

 The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and value in use.  In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  For an asset 
that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

 Reversals of impairment

 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount.  An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had 
been recognised.

 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

2.16 Liabilities and interest-bearing liabilities

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value.  Interest-bearing liabilities are recognised initially at 
fair value less attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables and interest-bearing liabilities are stated at amortised 
cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the profit and loss account over 
the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

2.17 Employee benefits

 Defined contribution plans

 Contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account 
as incurred.

2.18 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.  
If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability.

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

2.11 Inventories

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out 
basis except for raw materials which are determined using the weighted average cost formula and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.  Net realisable value represents the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.12 Construction work-in-progress

 Construction work-in-progress comprises uncompleted piling contracts.

 Construction work-in-progress at the balance sheet date are recorded in the balance sheet at cost plus attributable 
profit less recognised losses, net of progress billings and allowances for foreseeable losses, and are presented in 
the balance sheet as construction work-in-progress (as an asset) or as excess of progress billings over construction 
work-in-progress (as a liability), as applicable. Costs include cost of direct materials, direct labour and costs incurred 
in connection with the construction.  

 Progress claims not yet paid by the customer are included in the balance sheet under progress billings 
receivables.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

 Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits.  For the purpose of the consolidated 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts which are repayable on 
demand and which form an integral part of the Group’s cash management, fixed deposits pledged as security for 
bank overdraft and cash held in trustee account for redemption of loan stock.

2.15 Impairment

 The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.  An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account unless it reverses 
a previous revaluation, credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

 Trading of building products and plant and equipment

 Revenue from trading of building products, plant and equipment are recognised upon delivery to the customer 
which is taken to be the point in time when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred 
to the customer.  Revenue excludes goods and services taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade discounts.  
No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due.

 Interest income

 Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time-apportioned basis.

 Dividends

 Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is 
established.

2.22 Operating leases

 Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the leases are recognised 
in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Lease incentives received are 
recognised in the profit and loss account as an integral part of the total lease payments made.  Contingent rentals 
are charged to the profit and loss account in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

2.23 Finance costs

 Interest expense and similar charges are expensed in the profit and loss account in the period in which they are 
incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its intended use or 
sale.

 The interest component of finance lease payments is recognised in the profit and loss account using the effective 
interest rate method.

2.24 Segment reporting

 A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services 
(business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical 
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

 Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments.  The primary 
format, business segments, is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

 Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.

 Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can 
be allocated on a reasonable basis.  Unallocated items mainly comprise income-earning assets, corporate assets, 
liabilities and expenses.

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

2.19 Loan stocks issued with warrants

 Loan stocks issued with warrants are recorded at its assigned fair value, as are the warrants.

 The difference between the assigned fair values of the loan stock and the nominal values of the loan stock is 
recorded as a discount on the loan stock.

 A discount on the issue of the loan stock is amortised over its repayment period.
 
 The assigned fair value of the warrants issued by the Company is recorded as capital reserve. The value of 

warrants, when exercised by the holder, is capitalised as share premium. Upon the expiry of the warrants, the 
value of the remaining warrants will be treated as realised.

2.20 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.  Temporary differences are not 
recognised for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect 
neither accounting nor taxable profit.  The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of 
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

 Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except 
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

2.21 Revenue recognition
 
 Contract revenue

 When the outcome of the piling contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised as 
income and expense using the percentage of completion method, measured by reference of the contract activity 
at the balance sheet date.  When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the 
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.  When the outcome of a construction contract cannot 
be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred and 
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that can probably be recovered. Allowance is 
made where applicable for any foreseeable losses on uncompleted contracts as soon as the possibility of the loss 
is ascertained.

 Sales of land

 Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. 
Revenue excludes goods and services or other sales taxes. No revenue is recognised if there are significant 
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due.

 Rental income

 Rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Notes to the Financial Statements



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2006

54

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2006

55
CSC Holdings Limited Annual  Report  2006

3 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

At 
valuation

<---------------------------------At cost --------------------------------->

*Plant
and 

machinery

Leasehold 
land
and

property
Leasehold 
building

Plant
and 

machinery

Offi ce 
equipment, 
renovations 

and 
furniture 

and fi ttings

Motor 
vehicles

 and 
containers Total

Group $ $ $ $ $ $ $

At 1 April 2005 573,500 421,267 871,333 19,233,777 1,689,995 857,431 23,647,303
Depreciation charge for 

the year  - 6,052 24,521 2,094,617 143,485 163,858 2,432,533
Disposals  -  -  - (369,786) (67,959) (110,177) (547,922)
Transfer to assets held for 

sale  - (427,319) (895,854) (4,197,691) -  - (5,520,864)
At 31 March 2006 573,500  -  - 16,760,917 1,765,521 911,112 20,011,050

Carrying amount
At 1 April 2004  - 3,976,102 15,346,585 16,860,183 409,562 894,073 37,486,505

At 31 March 2005  - 3,903,479 15,757,675 17,835,885 419,988 847,287 38,764,314

At 1 April 2005  - 3,903,479 15,757,675 17,835,885 419,988 847,287 38,764,314

At 31 March 2006  -  -  - 14,273,570 386,795 771,919 15,432,284

Offi ce equipment, 
renovations and 
furnitures and 

fi ttings
Company $

Cost

At 1 April 2004 and 31 March 2005 1,798

Additions  -

Disposals  -

At 31 March 2006 1,798

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2004 1,702

Depreciation charge for the year 96

At 31 March 2005 1,798

At 1 April 2005 1,798

Depreciation charge for the year  -

At 31 March 2006 1,798

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

 Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are 
expected to be used for more than one period.

2.25 Non-current assets held for sale

 Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the relevant assets is brought up-to-date 
in accordance with applicable FRSs.  Then, on initial classification as held for sale, non-current assets measured 
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Any differences are taken to the profit and loss 
account.

 Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale are included in the profit and loss account, even when 
there is a revaluation.  The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent measurement.

3 Property, Plant and Equipment

At 
valuation

<---------------------------------At cost --------------------------------->

* Plant
and 

machinery

Leasehold 
land
and

property
Leasehold 
building

Plant
and 

machinery

Offi ce 
equipment, 
renovations 

and 
furniture 

and fi ttings

Motor 
vehicles

 and 
containers Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Group

Cost/Valuation

At 1 April 2004 573,500 4,324,746 15,923,662 34,167,628 1,960,540 1,728,300 58,678,376

Additions  -  - 705,346 2,925,264 154,903 235,528 4,021,041

Disposals  -  -  - (23,230) (5,460) (259,110) (287,800)

At 31 March 2005 573,500 4,324,746 16,629,008 37,069,662 2,109,983 1,704,718 62,411,617

At 1 April 2005 573,500 4,324,746 16,629,008 37,069,662 2,109,983 1,704,718 62,411,617

Additions  -  -  - 3,432,809 112,034 128,840 3,673,683

Disposals  -  -  - (938,882) (69,701) (150,527) (1,159,110)
Transfer to assets held for 

sale  - (4,324,746) (16,629,008) (8,529,102) -  - (29,482,856)
At 31 March 2006 573,500  -  - 31,034,487 2,152,316 1,683,031 35,443,334

Accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment losses

At 1 April 2004 573,500 348,644 577,077 17,307,445 1,550,978 834,227 21,191,871
Depreciation charge for 

the year  - 72,623 294,256 1,927,386 142,827 180,833 2,617,925
Disposals  -  -  - (1,054) (3,810) (157,629) (162,493)

At 31 March 2005 573,500 421,267 871,333 19,233,777 1,689,995 857,431 23,647,303
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4 Lease Prepayment

Group

Note 2006 2005

$ $

Cost 4,687,057 4,687,057

 Less:

Amortisation and impairment losses:

  At 1 April 3,427,858 3,176,018

 Amortisation charge for the year 31 251,840 251,840

 At 31 March 3,679,698 3,427,858

1,007,359 1,259,199

 The leasehold property is mortgaged to a financial institution as security for term loan (note 25) extended to a 
subsidiary.

 
5 Land Held for Development

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Cost of acquisition 4,500,000 4,500,000

Direct expenditure 142,926 142,926

4,642,926 4,642,926

 
 The land held for development is mortgaged to a bank as security for facilities extended by the bank to its 

subsidiaries (notes 25 and 26).  The market value of land held for development as at 31 March 2006 is estimated 
by an independent valuer to be approximately $5,034,225 (2005: $4,767,000).

Notes to the Financial Statements

3 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

Offi ce equipment, 
renovations and 
furnitures and 

fi ttings
Company $

Carrying amount

At 1 April 2004 96

At 31 March 2005  -

At 1 April 2005  -

At 31 March 2006  -

Included in the above are property, plant and equipment acquired under fi nance lease arrangements with the following 
carrying amounts:

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Plant and machinery 9,530,312 6,974,122

Motor vehicles and containers 655,068 678,674

Offi ce equipment, renovations and furniture and fi ttings 17,757 96,745

10,203,137 7,749,541

* Plant and machinery of a subsidiary carried at valuation are stated at directors’ valuation in 1992 based on 
professional valuations carried out by an independent professional valuer on the “existing use value” basis.  The 
deficit on valuation has been taken to the profit and loss account in prior years. The carrying amount of the plant 
and machinery, had it been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, would have been Nil (2005: Nil).

 During the financial period ended 31 December 2001 and financial years ended 31 March 2003 and 2004, the 
directors recognised impairment losses totalling $2,700,000 for the plant and machinery used in the wire mesh 
manufacturing business in view of the weak demand in the construction industry, competition and orders on 
hand.  The impairment losses were assessed by the directors based on the present value of estimated future cash 
flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the plant and machinery using a discount rate of approximately 
9.5%.  These assets belong to the “Piling Works and Trading of Goods” business segment of the Group.

 Leasehold land and properties, plant and machinery and leasehold building of the Group with total carrying 
amounts of $25,256,744 (2005: $23,288,902) are mortgaged to banks as security for facilities extended by the 
banks to the subsidiaries (note 25).

 Included in leasehold building are interest costs capitalised amounting to $211,687 (2005: $211,687).
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6 Investment in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
 
+ Audited by KPMG Singapore

* Audited by another member firm of KPMG International

1 The subsidiary is in the process of liquidation in the country of incorporation

7 Interest in an Associate

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Investment in an associate 1,152,519 1,165,870

Loan to an associate 1,000,000 1,000,000

2,152,519 2,165,870

Company

2006 2005

$ $

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 1,000,000 1,000,000

Impairment loss (1,000,000) (1,000,000)

 -  -

Loan to an associate 1,000,000 1,000,000

1,000,000 1,000,000

 The loan to an associate forms part of the Company’s net investment in the associate.  The loan is unsecured, 
interest-free and settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.

 Details of the associate are as follows:

Name of associate Principal activities

Country of 
incorporation/

place of business

Effective equity
held by the

Group

2006 2005

% %

* Excel Precast Pte Ltd Manufacturing and trading of 
precast concrete products

Singapore 40 40

* Audited by another firm of Certified Public Accountants.

Notes to the Financial Statements

6 Investment in Subsidiaries

Company

2006 2005

$ $

Cost of acquisition 40,090,108 37,090,108

  Less:

Impairment losses:

  At 1 April/31 March (20,699,101) (20,699,101)

19,391,007 16,391,007

Loans to subsidiaries 10,360,954  -

29,751,961 16,391,007

 The loans to subsidiaries form part of the Company’s net investment in subsidiaries.  The loans are unsecured, 
interest-free and settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.

 Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiary Principal activities

Country of 
incorporation/

place of business

Effective equity 
held by the 

Group

2006
%

2005
%

+ Ching Soon Construction Pte Ltd and 
its subsidiary:

Investment holding and piling 
works

Singapore 100 100

 +  CS Geotechnic Pte Ltd Civil engineering, piling, 
foundation and geotechnical 
engineering works

Singapore 100 100

+ CS Bored Pile System Pte Ltd Bored piling works Singapore 100 100

+ Ching Soon Industries Pte Ltd Manufacturing and trading of 
welded steel fabric products

Singapore 100 100

+ CS Industrial Land Pte Ltd Sale and sublet of land and 
property development

Singapore 100 100

+ Kolette Pte Ltd Sale and sublet of land and 
property development

Singapore 100 100

+ THL Engineering Pte. Ltd.
 (formerly known as THL Foundation 

Equipment Pte Ltd)

Sales and rental of heavy 
equipment, machinery and 
spare parts and piling works

Singapore 100 100

+ THL Foundation Equipment Pte. Ltd.
 (formerly known as THL Construction 

Equipment Pte Ltd)

Trading and rental of 
construction equipment and 
related parts

Singapore 55 55

* Ching Soon Concrete Products Sdn 
Bhd

Manufacturing and trading 
of reinforced concrete piles 
(currently dormant)

Malaysia 100 100

* 1 Ching Soon Construction Sdn Bhd Piling works (currently 
dormant)

Malaysia 100 100

Notes to the Financial Statements
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8 Other Investments

Group

Note 2006 2005

$ $

Quoted equity securities, available-for-sale 16,491  -

Quoted equity investments, at cost  - 61,873

 Less:

Impairment losses:

 At 1 April  - 36,062

 Impairment loss made during the year 31  - 8,284

 At 31 March  - 44,346

16,491 17,527

Market value  - 20,102

 With adoption of FRS 39 on 1 April 2005, quoted equity securities available-for-sale are stated at fair value.  
These investments were previously stated at cost less allowance for impairment loss which, in the opinion of the 
directors, are other than temporary.

9 Goodwill on Consolidation

Group

Note 2006 2005

$ $

Cost

At 1 April 649,532 649,532

Amortisation

At 1 April 335,576 205,676

Amortisation charge for the year 31  - 129,900

At 31 March 335,576 335,576

Carrying amount

At 31 March 313,956 313,956

Notes to the Financial Statements

7 Interest in an Associate (Cont’d)

 The financial information of the associate is as follows:

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Assets and Liabilities

Non-current assets 10,820,042 11,233,082

Current assets 6,415,903 7,580,506

Total assets 17,235,945 18,813,588

Non-current liabilities 10,525,513 11,245,871

Current liabilities 3,829,136 4,653,042

Total liabilities 14,354,649 15,898,913

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Results

Revenue 9,365,881 12,925,760

Expenses (9,205,997) (11,883,521)

Profi t before tax 159,884 1,042,239

Income tax expenses (193,263) (109,737)

(Loss)/Profi t after tax (33,379) 932,502

 The Group’s share of the capital commitments and contingent liabilities of the associate is Nil (2005: Nil) and 
$180,000 (2005: $96,400) respectively.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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10 Deferred Tax

 Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

At 1 April
2005

Charged/
(credited)

to profi t and
loss account 

(Note 33)

At
31 March

2006
Group $ $ $

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment 522,438 73,666 596,104

Unutilised tax losses  - (562,389) (562,389)

Tax value of unabsorbed capital allowances (105,635) (498,960) (604,595)

Others 48,592 781,238 829,830

Total 465,395 (206,445) 258,950

Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment 989,498 368,900 1,358,398

Unutilised tax losses (1,771,567)  - (1,771,567)

Tax value of unabsorbed capital allowances (488,733) 377,161 (111,572)

Others (364,997) 15,714 (349,283)

Total (1,635,799) 761,775 (874,024)

 
 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 

against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.  The net amounts, 
determined after appropriate offsetting, are as follows:

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Deferred tax assets 615,074 1,170,404

 Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following temporary differences because it is not 
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the subsidiaries of the Company can utilise the 
benefits.

Notes to the Financial Statements

9 Goodwill on Consolidation (Cont’d)

 Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

 Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGU) which are identified according to the business 
segments as follow:

2006 2005

$ $

Cost

At 1 April

- Piling segment 233,832 233,832

- Trading of equipment segment 415,700 415,700

649,532 649,532

Amortisation

At 1 April 335,576 205,676

Amortisation charge for the year  - 129,900

At 31 March 335,576 335,576

Carrying amount

At 31 March

- Piling segment 111,686  -

- Trading of equipment segment 202,270  -

313,956 313,956

 The recoverable amount of CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations.  These calculations use cash 
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.

 Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

Piling
segment

Trading of 
equipment 
segment

% %

Gross margin 9.0 30.0

Growth rate -   6.0

Discount rate 8.3 13.0

 Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its expectation of market 
development.

 The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.

 The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to relevant segments.

 The Group believes that any reasonably possible changes in the above key assumptions are not likely to cause the 
recoverable amount of goodwill to be materially lower than its carrying amount.
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12 Assets Classified as held for Sale (Cont’d)

 Included in the above are property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease arrangements with carrying 
amount of $537,702 (2005: Nil).

(i) On 15 September 2005, a subsidiary granted a call option to a third party for the sale and lease-back of 
the leasehold land and property situated at No. 2 Tuas South Avenue 2, Singapore 637601. As at 31 March 
2006, the leasehold land and building has been presented as assets held for sale on the face of the balance 
sheet. The sale is expected to be completed in the financial year ending 31 March 2007.

(ii) The Company has on 6 February 2006 entered into a joint venture agreement with three parties from 
India, namely Krishna Trading Corporation, Triveni Enterprise and Anand Goel, to carry out steel fabrication 
business in India. The manufacturing facility of a subsidiary, which includes a wire mesh machine and a cut 
and bend equipment has been presented as assets held for sale following the subsidiary’s decision to sell 
these machineries to the proposed joint venture. The sale is expected to be completed in the financial year 
ending 31 March 2007.

13 Inventories

Group

2006 2005

$ $

At cost:

Equipment and machinery 11,022,708 4,377,701

Spare parts 597,493 1,992,666

Raw materials 2,583,527 2,975,962

Finished goods 124,380 139,672

Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence (36,000)  -

14,292,108 9,486,001

 Included in the above are inventories amounting to $4,783,057 (2005: $1,248,000) which were acquired under 
finance lease agreements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

10 Deferred Tax (Cont’d)

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Taxable temporary differences (4,254,570) (1,261,527)

Unutilised tax losses 2,126,322 2,126,322

Unabsorbed wear and tear allowances 2,747,052 2,726,026

618,804 3,590,821

 The tax losses and unabsorbed wear and tear allowances are available for set-off against future taxable profits, 
subject to compliance with the relevant tax legislations and agreement by the Comptroller of Income Tax.

11 Progress Billings Receivables

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Progress billings receivables:

- non-current 1,638,554 3,449,860

- current 26,793,661 20,622,529

28,432,215 24,072,389

 Progress billings receivables include $6,393,044 (2005: $4,762,761) relating to retention amounts for construction 
work-in-progress.

12 Assets Classified as held for Sale

Group

Note 2006 2005

$ $

Assets classifi ed as held for sale:

Leasehold land and building (i) 19,630,581  -

Plant and machinery (ii) 4,331,411  -

23,961,992  -
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15 Trade and Other Receivables

Group Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Trade receivables 16 7,516,089 4,341,568  -  -

Deposits, prepayments and other 
receivables 17 2,349,691 1,261,845 669,340 17,282

Tax recoverable 257,005 480,914  -  -

Amounts due from:

  Subsidiaries (trade)  -  - 1,354,615  -

  Subsidiaries (non-trade) 29  -  - 21,284,856 33,864,837

  Associated company (trade) 258,471  -  -  -

  Associated company (non-trade)  - 26,795  -  -

  Related company (trade) 230,296  -  -  -

10,611,552 6,111,122 23,308,811 33,882,119

 The non-trade amounts due from an associated company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 
demand.

16 Trade Receivables

Group

Note 2006 2005

$ $

Trade receivables 7,835,265 4,703,617

 Less:

Allowance for doubtful receivables:

 At 1 April 362,049 746,138

 Allowance made/(reversed) during the year 31 69,695 (9,151)

 Allowance used during the year (112,568) (374,938)

 At 31 March 319,176 362,049

7,516,089 4,341,568

Notes to the Financial Statements

13 Inventories (Cont’d)

 Movements in allowance for inventory obsolescence are as follows:

Group

Note 2006 2005

$ $

At 1 April  - 375,916

Allowance made/(reversed) during the year:

- Raw materials 31 36,000 (264,000)

- Spare parts 31  - (111,916)

At 31 March 36,000  -

14 Land Held for Sale

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Cost of acquisition 10,132,138 10,132,138

Direct related expenditure 346,533 333,050

10,478,671 10,465,188

 
 The land is mortgaged to a bank as security for facilities extended by the bank to its subsidiaries (notes 25 and 

26).  The market value of land held for sale as at 31 March 2006 is estimated by an independent valuer to be 
approximately $11,335,403 (2005: $10,733,000).
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20 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Cont’d)

 Fixed deposits of subsidiaries amounting to $1,533,906 (2005: $1,502,721) are pledged to banks for facilities 
extended by the banks to the subsidiaries (notes 25 and 26). Included in the cash at bank and in hand is an 
amount of Nil (2005: $18,556) held in a trustee account for redemption of loan stock.

 The bank overdrafts are secured by the fixed deposits and are guaranteed by the Company and a corporate 
shareholder.

21 Share Capital

Company

No. of shares 2006 No. of shares 2005

$ $

Paid-up capital:

Ordinary shares

At 1 April 2005 889,913,560 8,899,136   889,913,560 8,899,136

Issue of shares via exercise of warrant 1  *  -  -
Transfer from share premium upon implementation 

of the Companies (Amendment) Act 2005 23,844,473  -
At 31 March 2006 889,913,561 32,743,609 889,913,560 8,899,136

* Representing $0.01

 During the financial year, one warrant was exercised and the number of shares issued was increased from 
889,913,560 to 889,913,561. The warrants expired on 27 April 2005.

 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to 
one vote per share at meetings of the Company.  All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual 
assets.

 As at 31 March 2006, there is no unissued shares under warrants (2005: 41,307,838).

 On the date of commencement of the Companies (Amendment) Act 2005 on 30 January 2006:

a) The concept of authorised share capital is abolished;

b) Shares of the Company have no par value; and

c) Shares premium is transferred to share capital.

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

Group Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Other receivables 18 283,524 571,660 7,040 1,763

Sundry deposits 1,727,707 422,028 656,500  -

Prepayments 338,460 268,157 5,800 15,519

2,349,691 1,261,845 669,340 17,282

18 Other Receivables

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Other receivables 305,341 605,623 7,040 1,763

 Less:

Allowance for doubtful receivables:

 At 1 April 33,963 84,145  -  -

 Allowance used during the year (12,146) (50,182)  -  -

 At 31 March 21,817 33,963  -  -

283,524 571,660 7,040 1,763

19 Loan to a Related Company

 Loan to a related company is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

20 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Cash at bank and in hand 4,017,047 2,128,294 332,517 176,877

Fixed deposits 1,533,906 1,502,721 -  -

5,550,953 3,631,015 332,517 176,877

Bank overdrafts (secured) (1,961,814) (1,117,519)  (931,234)  -

Cash held in trustee account - (18,556) - (18,556)

Fixed deposits pledged as security (1,533,906) (1,502,721) - -

Cash and cash equivalents in the

  consolidated statement of cash fl ows 2,055,233 992,219 (598,717) 158,321
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24 Obligations Under Finance Leases

Payments Interest Principal

$ $ $

2006

Repayable within 1 year 3,112,718 507,441 2,605,277

Repayable after 1 year but within 5 years 6,853,926 661,473 6,192,453

Repayable after 5 years 443,187 16,552 426,635

7,297,113 678,025 6,619,088

10,409,831 1,185,466 9,224,365

2005

Repayable within 1 year 1,432,820 238,466 1,194,354

Repayable after 1 year but within 5 years 3,081,363 340,966 2,740,397

Repayable after 5 years 200,907 16,212 184,695

3,282,270 357,178 2,925,092

4,715,090 595,644 4,119,446

25 Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings (Secured)

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Current portion

 Term loan I (Note A)  - 693,630  -  -

 Term loan II (Note A) 753,227 723,228  -  -

 Term loan III (Note A) 1,138,215  -  -  -

 Term loan IV (Note D) 1,040,000  - 1,040,000  -

 Factoring loan (Note B) 316,173 380,888  -  -

 Revolving credit facility (Note C) 1,400,000 1,400,000  -  -

 Loan stock (Note D)  - 780,000  -  -

4,647,615 3,977,746 1,040,000  -

Non-current portion

 Term loan I (Note A)  - 6,450,398  -  -

 Term loan II (Note A) 1,526,206 2,279,435  -  -

 Term loan III (Note A) 5,311,668  -  -  -

 Term loan IV (Note D) 3,380,000  - 3,380,000  -

 Loan stock (Note D)  - 4,400,416  - 5,180,416

10,217,874 13,130,249 3,380,000 5,180,416

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Reserves

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Share premium  - 23,844,473  - 23,844,473

Capital reserve 17,798,271 18,168,479 17,798,271 18,168,479

Reserve on consolidation 117,195 117,195  -  -

Currency translation reserve 117,507 128,446  -  -

Accumulated profi t/(losses) 1,100,903 (2,901,505) (6,704,677) (6,418,012)

19,133,876 39,357,088 11,093,594 35,594,940

 Group and Company

 The capital reserve represents the assigned fair value of the warrants issued by the Company and the effect of 
the capital reduction of the Company’s ordinary shares from $0.05 to $0.01 per share during the financial year 
ended 31 March 2004. The capital reserve is not distributable in accordance with Article 142 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company.

 The reserve on consolidation arises from the acquisition of minority interests by a subsidiary pursuant to a scheme 
of restructuring.

 The currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the 
financial statements of foreign entities that are not integral to the operations of the Company.

23 Loan from a Shareholder

 The loan is unsecured and bears interest at 6.25% (2005: 6.25%) per annum. The loan is repayable over 24 
monthly instalments, ranging from $90,000 to $126,429, commencing from 30 August 2004.
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26 Trade and Other Payables

Group Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Trade payables 22,464,769 16,878,480 122,247 67,007

Accruals 7,932,110 6,116,627 234,624 314,106

Other payables 28 2,238,529 2,260,211 73,195 45,215

Amounts due to:

- Subsidiaries (non-trade) 29  -  - 4,774,786 1,349,183

- Related companies (trade) 1,854,260 1,007,767  -  -

34,489,668 26,263,085 5,204,852 1,775,511

 The Group’s trade payables include bills payable amounting to $3,779,768 (2005: $1,932,040) which are secured 
by a subsidiary’s fixed deposits (note 20), a legal mortgage of a subsidiary’s leasehold land (notes 5 and 14) and 
are guaranteed by the Company.

27 Excess of Progress Billings Over Construction Work-In-Progress

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Cost incurred and attributable profi t 208,651,777 153,402,167

Allowance for foreseeable losses (1,327,321) (1,662,023)

207,324,456 151,740,144

Progress billings (209,415,822) (154,066,673)

Excess of progress billings over construction work-in-progress (2,091,366) (2,326,529)

 Movements in allowance for foreseeable losses are as follows:

Note 2006 2005

$ $

At 1 April 1,662,023 1,399,784

Allowance made during the year 31 847,522 388,124

Allowance used during the year (1,182,224) (125,885)

At 31 March 1,327,321 1,662,023
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25 Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings (Secured) (Cont’d)

(A) Term loan I was restructured into a term loan of approximately $6,900,000 (Term loan III) which is to be repaid 
over a period of six and a half years.  Term loan III is secured by mortgages over the Group’s leasehold land and 
building (note 3).  The first 6 monthly instalments shall be fixed at $80,000 each, commencing 29 July 2005.  The 
balance is repayable over 72 monthly instalments based on the outstanding principal sum over the remaining 
tenure of six years at the prevailing interest rate of 2.5% above the bank’s 3 months swap offer rate (2005: 3.19% 
to 4.27%) per annum.

 Term loan II with a financial institution is secured by mortgages over the Group’s leasehold property (note 4) and 
plant and machinery (note 3).  Term loan II is repayable over 48 monthly instalments of approximately $63,000.  
Term loan II bears interest rate at 7.25% (2005: 7.25%) per annum.

(B) The factoring loan is secured by the assignment of receipts from one of the subsidiary’s ongoing projects.  It bears 
interest of 5.25% (2005: 5.25%) per annum.

(C) The revolving credit facility with a bank is secured by legal mortgages over the Group’s fixed deposits (note 20) 
and leasehold land (note 3).  The revolving credit facility is rolled over at the end of each interest repricing period 
of 6 months.  The revolving credit facility bears interest ranging from 3.25% to 4.88% (2005: 2.57% to 3.25%) 
per annum.

(D) Group and Company

Note 2006 2005

$ $

Loan stock (secured), at cost  - 5,181,700

 Unamortised discount on loan stock issued with warrants:

  At 1 April 1,284 32,152

  Amortisation for the year 31 (1,284) (30,868)

  At 31 March  - 1,284

 - 5,180,416

 During the financial year, pursuant to the terms of issue of the loan stock, the Company redeemed $5,181,700, 
being the remaining principal amount of the loan stock.

 The redemption is financed by Term loan IV from another bank which is to be repaid over a period of 5 years.  The 
first 20 quarterly instalments shall be fixed at $260,000 each, commencing on 27 July 2005 and a final instalment 
of the balance amount outstanding. Term loan IV is secured by mortgage over the Group’s leasehold land (notes 
5 and 14) and bears interest at the prevailing rate of 2% per annum above the bank’s cost of funds for 3 months 
interest period.

Notes to the Financial Statements



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2006

74

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2006

75
CSC Holdings Limited Annual  Report  2006

31 Profit from Operations before Taxation

 The following items have been included in arriving at profit from operations before taxation:

Group

Note 2006 2005
$ $

Amortisation of:
- Goodwill 9  - 129,900
- Discount on loan stock 25 1,284 30,868
- Lease prepayment 4 251,840 251,840
Allowances made/(reversed) for:
- Inventory obsolescence 13 36,000 (375,916)
- Foreseeable losses 27 847,522 388,124
- Doubtful trade receivables 16 69,695 (9,151)
Contributions to defi ned contribution plans included

in staff costs 663,232 683,492
Depreciation 3 2,432,533 2,617,925
Directors’ remuneration 546,258 510,397
Directors’ fees 183,000 150,418
Exchange (gain)/loss (99,750) 48,586
Fees paid to a fi rm of which a director is a member 10,000 8,000
Fees paid to a director 24,000 14,000
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment (122,538) 32,664
Interests income (44,314) (13,462)
Interests paid/payable:
- Bank overdraft 80,411 76,051
- Finance leases 493,303 251,912
- Term loans 766,673 534,661
- Loan stock 24,915 345,412
- Bills payable 171,671 40,971
- Loan from a shareholder 99,488 155,310
- Others 60,012 67,222
Impairment losses on:
- Other investments 8  - 8,284
- Investments available-for-sale 1,036  -
Loss on redemption of loan stock  - 39,341
Non-audit fees paid or payable to auditors of the Company 125,150 62,440
Net gain on remeasurement of long term progress billings 

receivables at fair values through profi t and loss (82,320)  -
Operating lease expenses 119,604 919,950
Staff costs 11,179,766 10,080,419

Notes to the Financial Statements

28 Other Payables

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

$ $ $ $

Other payables 642,829 1,509,065 73,195 45,215

Rental deposit received 213,034 231,873  -  -

Deposit received 717,144  -  -  -

Advance payments received for contracts 665,522 519,273  -  -

2,238,529 2,260,211 73,195 45,215

29 Amounts Due from/(to) Subsidiaries (Non-Trade) – The Company

 The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, except for an 
amount of $11,927,856 (2005: $12,222,677) due from Kolette Pte Ltd which is unsecured, repayable on demand 
and bears interest at 4.14% (2005: 6.5%) per annum.

30 Revenue

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Revenue from piling works 88,739,746 71,696,821

Trading of building products and plant and equipment 17,219,108 4,416,664

Rental income 1,292,833 801,202

107,251,687 76,914,687

Notes to the Financial Statements
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34 Earnings Per Share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculations for basic earnings per share are based on:

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Profi t attributable to shareholders 3,796,200 2,095,868

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 889,913,561 889,913,560

No. of shares

2006 2005

The weighted average number of ordinary shares is arrived at as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at beginning of the year 889,913,560 889,913,560

Weighted average number of shares issued during the year 1  -

Issued ordinary shares at end of the year 889,913,561 889,913,560

(b) Diluted earnings per share

 The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per share as the Company does not have any 
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

35 Changes in Accounting Policies – The Group

 The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2006.

 The changes in accounting policies arising from the adoption of FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement, FRS 103 Business Combinations, FRS 36 (revised) Impairment of Assets, FRS 38 (revised) Intangible 
Assets and FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discountinued Operations are summarised below:

 FRS 39 Finanical Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

 The adoption of FRS 39 resulted in the Group recognising the non-current portion of receivables at fair value.  This 
change has been accounted for by increasing the opening balance at 1 April 2005 of the Group’s accumulated 
losses by $164,000. Comparatives have not been restated.

 FRS 103 Business Combinations, FRS 36 (revised) Impairment of Assets and FRS 38 (revised) Intangible 
Assets

 The adoption of FRS 103, FRS 36 (revised) and FRS 38 (revised) has resulted in a change in the accounting policy 
for goodwill.

Notes to the Financial Statements

32 Key Management Personnel Compensation

 The key management personnel compensation are as follows:

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Short-term employee benefi ts paid and payable to key management 
personnel 1,797,151 1,652,570

33 Income Taxes

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Current tax expense

Current year 370,045 179,368

Group tax relief (257,005) (179,368)

Over provided in prior years (260,227) (437,261)

(147,187) (437,261)

Deferred tax expense

Movements in temporary differences 555,330 478,764

Underprovided in prior years  - 184,544

Income tax expense 408,143 226,047

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profi t from operations before taxation 4,788,725 2,321,915

Income tax using corporate tax rate at 20% 957,745 464,448

Income not subject to tax (120,450) (111,762)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 425,478 135,303

Over provided in prior years (260,227) (252,717)

Effect of temporary differences previously not recognised (594,403) (9,225)

408,143 226,047

Notes to the Financial Statements
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36 Commitments (Cont’d)

(b) Capital expenditure contracted for but not recognised in the financial statements is as follows:

2006 2005
$ $

Capital commitment in respect of:
- a proposed acquisition of a subsidiary 12,400,000  -
- puchase of property, plant and equipment  - 1,641,504

12,400,000 1,641,504

 On 13 March 2006, the Company entered into three separate sale and purchase agreements with third parties 
to acquire all the issued shares in G-Pile Sistem Sdn. Bhd. (“G-Pile”) for an indicative consideration ranges from 
approximately $11.5 million to $12.4 million.  As at the date of report, the proposed acquisition has not been 
completed.

(c) The Group leases out certain areas of its premise.  Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are receivable as 
follows:

2006 2005

$ $

Within 1 year 272,933 642,627

After 1 year but within 5 years 51,309 132,530

324,242 775,157

37 Financial Instruments

 Financial risk management objectives and policies

 Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Group.  The Group’s business strategies, tolerance of 
risk and general risk management philosophy are determined by management in accordance with prevailing 
economic and operating conditions.  The Group has a system of controls in place to create an acceptable balance 
between the cost of risks occuring and the cost of managing the risks.  The management continually monitors the 
Group’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.  

 In the opinion of the directors, the Group has taken appropriate quality control measures to mitigate the effect 
from any claims caused by product and construction defects, which may affect adversely its financial results, even 
though the Group is not covered by insurance against such events.  

 The Group is exposed to price risk, primarily changes in interest rates, currency exchange rates and market 
prices.  It uses derivative instruments in connection with its risk management activities but does not hold or issue 
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a counter-party to settle its 
financial and contractual obligations to the Group, as and when they fall due.

Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Changes in Accounting Policies – The Group (Cont’d)

 Goodwill which arose following the acquisition of THL Engineering Pte. Ltd. during the financial year ended 31 
March 2003, is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is no longer amortised.  Instead, goodwill 
impairment is tested annually, or when circumstances change, indicating that goodwill might be impaired.  This 
change has resulted in an increase in the consolidated profit for the financial year ended 31 March 2006 by 
$129,900, being the goodwill amortisation which would be charged to the profit and loss account.

 FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

 Assets and liabilities for disposal groups held for sale are presented separately on the face of the balance sheet, 
and the results of discontinued operations separately on the profit and loss account.  The assets and liabilities of 
disposal groups are those in which the amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than 
through continuing use.

 All changes in the accounting policies have been made in accordance with the transitional provisions in the 
respective standards.

 The changes in accounting policies have the following impact on the net profit for the year:

Group

2006 2005

$ $

Profi t before changes in accounting policies 3,677,632 1,961,635

Effects of adopting FRS 39 82,320 4,333

Effects of adopting FRS 103 129,900 129,900

Effects of adopting FRS 105 490,730  -

Profi t for the year 4,380,582 2,095,868

36 Commitments

 As at 31 March 2006, the Group had the following commitments:

(a) Future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases:

2006 2005

$ $

Within 1 year 191,032 763,423

After 1 year but within 5 years 440,149 573,097

After 5 years  - 58,084

631,181 1,394,604

Notes to the Financial Statements
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37 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

< -------------- Fixed interest --------------- >

Note

Effective 
interest

rate
Floating 
interest

Within
1 year

Between
1 to 5
years

After
5 years Total

% $ $ $ $ $
Group
2006

Financial Asset
Fixed deposits 20 2.05 1,533,906  -  -  - 1,533,906

Financial Liabilities
Term loans II 25 6.67 (2,279,433)  -  -  - (2,279,433)
Term loans III 25 5.22 (6,449,883)  -  -  - (6,449,883)
Term loans IV 25 4.14 (4,420,000)  -  -  - (4,420,000)
Revolving credit facility 25 3.71 (1,400,000)  -  -  - (1,400,000)
Factoring loan 25 13.27  - (316,173)  -  - (316,173)
Finance lease obligations 24 6.86  - (2,605,277) (6,192,453) (426,635) (9,224,365)
Bills payables 26 5.19 (3,779,768)  -  -  - (3,779,768)
Loan from a shareholder 23 6.25  - (1,107,189)  -  - (1,107,189)
Bank overdrafts 20 6.77 (1,961,814)  -  -  - (1,961,814)

(20,290,898) (4,028,639) (6,192,453) (426,635) (30,938,625)
Total (18,756,992) (4,028,639) (6,192,453) (426,635) (29,404,719)

2005

Financial Asset
Fixed deposits 20 0.90 1,502,721  - -  - 1,502,721

Financial Liabilities
Term loans I 25 3.69 (7,144,028)  - -  - (7,144,028)
Term loans II 25 7.15 (3,002,663)  - -  - (3,002,663)
Revolving credit facility 25 2.75 (1,400,000)  - -  - (1,400,000)
Loan stock S$ fi xed rate 

loan 25 6.50  - (5,180,416)  -  - (5,180,416)
Factoring loan 25 7.30  - (380,888)  -  - (380,888)
Finance lease obligations 24 6.98  - (1,194,354) (2,740,397) (184,695) (4,119,446)
Bills payables 26 5.25 (1,932,040)  -  -  - (1,932,040)
Loan from a shareholder 23 6.25 - (1,739,490) (575,895)  - (2,315,385)
Bank overdrafts 20 3.71 (1,117,519)  -  -  - (1,117,519)

(14,596,250) (8,495,148) (3,316,292) (184,695) (26,592,385)
Total (13,093,529) (8,495,148) (3,316,292) (184,695) (25,089,664)

Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

 The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade, progress billings and other receivables represent the 
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

 The majority of the Group’s trade and progress billings receivables represent revenue from sales of piles and piling 
services rendered to parties operating in infrastructure, property development and construction industries. The 
Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and generally does not require 
collateral for trade receivables.  Cash and bank deposits are placed with banks and financial institutions which are 
regulated.

 No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

 Liquidity risk

 To ensure continuity of funding, the Group’s policy is to use a mix of long-term and short-term financing. Short 
term funding is obtained from overdraft facilities and trust receipts.  Long-term funding is primarily used for 
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and land held for development.  The Group examines various 
alternative financing arrangements to balance its debt leverage.

 Included in total assets of the Group at the balance sheet date are progress billings receivables and trade 
receivables totalling $35,948,304 (2005: $28,413,957).  The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on the 
timely settlement of progress billings receivables.  The Group carefully monitored current and expected liquidity 
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient working capital and adequate external finance to meet its 
liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms.

 Interest rate risk

 The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to its interest-earning financial assets and 
interest-bearing financial liabilities.  The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest 
rate risk.  

 Foreign currency risk

 There is no formal hedging policy with respect to foreign currency risk.  Exposure to currency risk is monitored on 
an ongoing basis and the Group endeavours to keep the net exposure at an acceptable level.

 Effective interest rates and repricing analysis

 In respect of interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates 
their effective interest rates at balance sheet date and the periods in which they reprice.
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39 Significant Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

 In addition to the related party transactions disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, there were the 
following significant related party transactions which were carried out in the normal course of business on terms 
agreed between the parties during the financial year:

2006 2005

$ $

Related Corporations:

Revenue from piling works and trading of goods 487,127 1,927,139

Revenue from rental and service income 225,220 62,505

Operating lease expenses 937,310 1,332,014

Purchase of plant and equipment 6,792,000 1,660,163

Upkeep of machinery and equipment 76,478 155,504

Subcontractor fees 24,200 2,057,229

Sale of plant and equipment 70,000  -

Shareholders:

Interest expense 99,488 155,309

Professional fee  - 200,000

40 Segment Reporting

(a) Business Segments

 The Group comprises the following main business segments:

 Piling works and trading of goods : Piling works, manufacturing and trading of construction products.

 Sale and sublet of land : Property development, sales and rental of land.

 Trading and leasing of equipment : Trading and rental of heavy machinery, construction industrial 
   equipment and its related services.

Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

 The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, cash and deposits, trade and other payables and short term 
borrowings approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.

 The carrying amounts of the Group’s term loans approximate their fair values as these term loans are mainly 
floating rate loans.

38 Contingent Liabilities

 As at 31 March 2006, the Company had the following unsecured contingent liabilities:

2006 2005

$ $

Guarantees given as securities for credit and fi nance lease facilities granted to:

- subsidiaries 48,931,084 39,495,912

- associate 3,672,320 3,623,600

Other guarantees given as securities to third parties for subsidiaries 7,272,174 8,435,452
 

 Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies 
within the Group, these contracts are considered to be insurance contracts, and are accounted for as insurance 
contracts.  In this respect, the Group treats the guarantee contracts as contingent liabilities until such time it 
becomes probable that the Group will be required to make a payment under the guarantees.

39 Significant Related Party Transactions

 Identity of related parties

 For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group 
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making 
financial and operating decision, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control 
or common significant influence.  Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

Notes to the Financial Statements



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2006

84

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2006

85
CSC Holdings Limited Annual  Report  2006

40 Segment Reporting (Cont’d)

Piling works 
and trading of 

goods

Sale
and sublet

of land

Trading and 
leasing of 
equipment Elimination Consolidated

$ $ $ $ $

2005

Revenue

External sales 71,872,046 801,202 4,241,439  - 76,914,687

Inter-segment revenue 7,287,177 1,031,115 1,564,282 (9,882,574)  -

Total revenue 79,159,223 1,832,317 5,805,721 (9,882,574) 76,914,687

Results

Segment results 3,000,203 354,415 622,364 234,383 4,211,365

Unallocated expenses (759,666)

Finance costs (1,502,785)
Share of profi t of 

associate 373,001
Income tax expense (226,047)

Net profi t for the year 2,095,868

Assets

Segment assets 62,285,544 38,989,105 5,118,270 (6,498,858) 99,894,061

Unallocated assets 2,217,850

Total assets 102,111,911

Liabilities

Segment liabilities 15,067,602 33,805,119 3,776,285 (4,253,350) 48,395,656

Unallocated liabilities 5,460,031

Total liabilities 53,855,687

Other Information

Capital expenditure 3,362,501 444,201 14,502 199,837 4,021,041

Depreciation charges 2,233,829 411,542 7,100 (34,546) 2,617,925

Amortisation 251,840  -  -  - 251,840

(b) Geographical Segments

 The Group’s business operations are predominantly carried out in Singapore.

Notes to the Financial Statements

40 Segment Reporting (Cont’d)

Piling works 
and trading of 

goods

Sale
and sublet

of land

Trading and 
leasing of 
equipment Elimination Consolidated

$ $ $ $ $

2006

Revenue

External sales 96,273,578 680,915 10,297,194  - 107,251,687

Inter-segment revenue 21,302,877 955,305 4,964,113 (27,222,295)  -

Total revenue 117,576,455 1,636,220 15,261,307 (27,222,295) 107,251,687

Results

Segment results 4,937,516 304,037 2,048,526 2,879 7,292,958

Unallocated expenses (618,106)

Finance costs (1,872,776)

Share of loss of associate (13,351)

Income tax expense (408,143)

Net profi t for the year 4,380,582

Assets

Segment assets 68,845,271 37,789,950 14,990,041 (5,407,093) 116,218,169

Unallocated assets 1,616,931

Total assets 117,835,100

Liabilities

Segment liabilities 16,680,559 32,619,245 10,135,757 (987,925) 58,447,636

Unallocated liabilities 5,781,300

Total liabilities 64,228,936

Other Information

Capital expenditure 3,665,988 6,810 885  - 3,673,683

Depreciation charges 2,384,468 42,473 8,471 (2,879) 2,432,533

Amortisation 251,840  -  -  - 251,840
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42 Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Cont’d)

 Impairment of goodwill

 The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the 
value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the 
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also choose a 
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

43 Comparative Information

 Comparatives in the financial statements have been changed from previous year due to the changes in accounting 
policies as described in note 35.  In addition, certain comparatives have been reclassified to conform with current 
year’s presentation.

As
previously 
reported

Amount 
reclassifi ed

As
reclassifi ed

$ $ $
The Group
Balance sheet

Non-current assets

Interest in an associate 1,165,870 1,000,000 2,165,870

Long-term progress billings receivables  - 3,449,860 3,449,860

Current assets/(liabilities)

Trade and other receivables 7,111,122 (1,000,000) 6,111,122

Progress billings receivables  - 20,622,529 20,622,529

Work-in-progress

 Cost incurred and attributable profi t 269,212,599 (115,810,432) 153,402,167

 Progress billings (244,102,337) 90,035,664 (154,066,673)

 Allowance for foreseeable losses (2,699,896) 1,037,873 (1,662,023)

 Allowance for rectifi cation costs (664,506) 664,506  -
Work-in-progress/(Excess of progress billings over 

construction work-in-progress) 21,745,860 (24,072,389) (2,326,529)

Profi t and loss account

Cost of sales (66,275,571) 92,176 (66,183,395)

Distribution expenses  - (92,176) (92,176)

The Company
Balance sheet

Non-current asset

Interest in an associate - 1,000,000 1,000,000

Current asset

Trade and other receivables 34,882,119 (1,000,000) 33,882,119
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41 Subsequent Events

 Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company granted 45,000,000 options to certain eligible directors and 
employees of the Company pursuant to the CSC Executive Share Option Scheme 2004.  These options represent 
approximately 5% of the issued and fully paid share capital of the Company as at balance sheet date.

42 Accounting Estimates and Judgements

 Estimates and judgements are continually, evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

 The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting application of 
those policies and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition and assumptions are factors to be 
considered when reviewing the consolidated financial statements.  The principal accounting policies are set forth 
in note 2.  The Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most significant judgements 
and estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements.

 Depreciation

 Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking 
into account the estimated residual value.  The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in 
order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting period.  Changes in 
the expected level of use of the assets and the Group’s historical experience with similar assets after taking into 
account anticipated technological changes could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of the 
assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.  Any changes in the economic useful lives could 
impact the depreciation charges and consequently affect the Group’s results.

 Impairment of trade receivables

 The Group evaluates whether there is any objective evidence that trade receivables are impaired, and determines 
the amount of impairment loss as a result of the inability of the customers to make required payments.  The Group 
determines the estimates based on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, credit-worthiness, and historical 
write-off experience.  If the financial condition of the customers were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be 
higher than estimated.

 Construction contracts

 As explained in note 2.21, revenue and profit recognition on an uncompleted project is dependent on estimating 
the total outcome of the construction contract, as well as the work done to date.  Based on the Group’s recent 
experience and the nature of the construction activity undertaken, the management makes estimates of the point 
at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete, rectification costs and 
revenue can be reliably estimated.  In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue may be higher or 
lower than estimated at the balance sheet date, which would affect the revenue and profit recognised in future 
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.  As at 31 March 2006, the management considered that 
all costs to complete and revenue can be reliably estimated.

 Allowance for foreseeable losses

 As explained in note 2.12, the Group make allowance for foreseeable losses taking into account the Group’s 
recent experience. It is possible that the recent experience is not indicative of future losses that it will incur. Any 
increase or decrease would affect profit or loss in the future years.
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44 FRS not yet Adopted

 The Group has yet to adopt the following new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs which have been issued but not yet come 
into effect:

• FRS 40 Investment Property
• Amendments to FRS 19 Employee Benefits – Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures
• INT FRS 104 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
• INT FRS 105 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation 

Funds
• Amendments to FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of 

Forecast Intragroup Transactions
• FRS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
• INT FRS 106 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market – Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
• Amendments to FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – The Fair Value Option
• Amendments to FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Financial Guarantee Contracts 

and Credit Insurance
• FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
• Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – Capital Disclosures
• Amendments to FRS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates – Net Investment in a Foreign 

Operation
• INT FRS 107 Applying the Restatement Approach under FRS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary 

Economies

 The Group does not expect the adoption of the above new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs to have a material impact 
on its financial statements when they come into effect in 2006 and 2007.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Particulars Tenure
Site Area

(Sq m)

Approx
Built-up 

area
(Sq m)

1. Leasehold industrial land and building on Lot 2865P Mukim 7 at 2 
Tuas South Avenue 2, Singapore 637601 

60 years wef 
4 Jan 1999

12,425.9 22,298.12

2. Leasehold industrial land comprising Lots 3611W, 3612V, 3613P, 
3615A, 3616K, 3617N, 3618X & 3619L Mukim 7 at Tuas South 
Avenue 2/5, Singapore 630000

60 years wef 
8 Apr 2000

38,011.2 -

3. Leasehold industrial land and building on Lot 1671 Mukim 13 at 7 
Kranji Loop, Singapore 739543

30 years wef 
16 Dec 1980

7,224.3 1,879.2

PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP
AS AT 31 MARCH 2006
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SHAREHOLDERS’ STATISTICS

CSC HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 15 JUNE 2006

SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid-up capital : $32,743,609 (2005: $8,899,136)
Class of equity security : Ordinary Shares
Voting rights of ordinary shareholdings :  On a show of hands: One vote for each member
  On a poll: One vote for each ordinary share

Range of Shareholdings
No. of

Shareholders % No. of Shares %

1 - 999 14 0.28 4,546 0.00

1,000 - 10,000 2,405 48.89 14,445,957 1.62

10,001 - 1,000,000 2,448 49.77 186,051,639 20.91

1,000,001 and above 52 1.06 689,411,419 77.47

    

Total 4,919 100.00 889,913,561 100.00

As at 15 June 2006, approximately 45.6% of the Company’s Ordinary Shares are held in the hands of the public. Rule 
723 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited has accordingly been compiled with. 

TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS LIST AS AT 15 JUNE 2006

S/No. Name No. of Shares %

1 TH INVESTMENTS PTE LTD  271,071,017 30.46
2 TAT HONG HOLDINGS LTD          137,334,000 15.43
3 NG CHWEE CHENG                 43,578,000 4.90
4 UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD  41,060,000 4.61
5 KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE. LTD.  37,478,000 4.21
6 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD    21,402,000 2.40
7 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD  11,211,000 1.26
8 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD  8,305,000 0.93
9 MAYBANK NOMINEES (S) PTE LTD  7,433,000 0.84
10 DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (S) PTE LTD  6,417,000 0.72
11 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD  6,095,000 0.68
12 TEO CHONG HOCK  5,892,000 0.66
13 KOH SOO KEONG  5,800,000 0.65
14 DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD  5,139,000 0.58
15 CHIONH CHYE HION  4,589,900 0.52
16 LIM KWENG KIA  4,055,000 0.46
17 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD  3,500,000 0.39
18 TEO YONG PING (ZHANG RONGBIN)  3,500,000 0.39
19 YAP MAY IMM GILLIAN  3,500,000 0.39
20 TAY SIEW  HOCK  3,405,000 0.38

Total 630,764,917 70.86

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (as shown in the Register of Substantial Shareholders)

Direct Interest Deemed Interest
No Name of Substantial Shareholder No of Shares % No of Shares %
1 TH Investments Pte Ltd 271,071,017 30.46 478,405,017 53.76
2 Tat Hong Holdings Ltd 137,334,000 15.43 478,405,017 53.76
3 Ng Chwee Cheng 43,578,000 4.90 484,107,017 54.40
4 Ng San Tiong 400,000 0.04 478,405,017 53.76
5 Chwee Cheng & Son Pte Ltd  -  - 478,405,017 53.76

Notes:

1. TH Investments Pte Ltd is deemed to have an interest in the Company’s shares through Tat Hong Holdings Ltd.

2. Tat Hong Holdings Ltd is deemed to have an interest in the Company’s shares through TH Investments Pte Ltd, and an interest 
in the Company’s shares registered in the name of Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd and UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd.

3. Mr Ng Chwee Cheng is deemed to have an interest through TH Investment Pte Ltd and Tat Hong Holdings Ltd, and an interest 
in the Company’s shares registered in the name of Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd and Phillip Securities Pte Ltd.

4. Mr Ng San Tiong is deemed to have an interest in the Company’s shares through TH Investments Pte Ltd and Tat Hong Holdings 
Ltd.

5. Chwee Cheng & Son Pte Ltd is deemed to have an interest in the Company’s shares through TH Investments Pte Ltd and Tat 
Hong Holdings Ltd.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

CSC HOLDINGS LIMITED
Company Registration No. 199707845E

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 9th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of CSC Holdings Limited (the “Company”) 
will be held at the Function Room, 2 Tuas South Avenue 2, Level 2, Singapore 637601 on Thursday, 20 July 2006 at 
9:00 a.m. for the following purposes: 

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company 
for the year ended 31 March 2006 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.

 (Resolution 1)

2. To re-elect the following Directors, retiring pursuant to Articles 104 and 108 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association:

(a) Mr Tan Ee Ping        (Retiring under Article 104)  (Resolution 2a)

(b) Mr Teo Beng Teck    (Retiring under Article 104)  (Resolution 2b)
(c) Mr See Yen Tarn      (Retiring under Article 108)  (Resolution 2c)
(d) Mr Tan Hup Foi       (Retiring under Article 108)  (Resolution 2d)

Mr Tan Ee Ping will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain Chairman of 
the Remuneration Committee and will be considered independent.

Mr Teo Beng Teck will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain Chairman 
of the Risk Management Committee and will be considered non-independent.

Mr See Yen Tarn will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain a member 
of the Nominating Committee and will be considered independent.

Mr Tan Hup Foi will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain a member of 
the Audit Committee and will be considered independent.

3. To note the retirement of Mr Low Seow Chye as a Director of the Company, pursuant to 
Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Cap.50. Mr Low has indicated that he does not 
wish to seek re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting.

4. To approve the payment of S$175,726 as Directors’ fees for the year ended 31 March 
2006. (2005: S$168,000)

 (Resolution 3)

5. To re-appoint KPMG as the Company’s Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fi x 
their remuneration.

 (Resolution 4)

6. To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an Annual 
General Meeting.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fi t, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without any 
modifi cations: 

7. Authority to allot and issue shares up to 50 per centum (50%) of issued shares in the capital of the 
Company

 That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, the Directors be authorised and empowered to : 

(a) (i) issue shares in the Company (“shares”) whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise; and/or

(ii) make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or would require 
shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of (as well as adjustments to) 
options, warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible into shares,

 at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the Directors 
may in their absolute discretion deem fit; and

(b) (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) issue shares in 
pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while this Resolution was in force,

 provided that the aggregate number of shares (including shares to be issued in accordance with the terms of 
convertible securities issued, made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) to be allotted and issued  pursuant 
to this Resolution shall not exceed fifty per centum (50%) of the issued shares in the capital of the Company at 
the time of the passing of this Resolution, of which the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to 
be issued other than on a pro rata basis to all shareholders of the Company shall not exceed twenty per centum 
(20%) of the issued shares in the capital of the Company and that such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by 
the Company in general meeting, continue in force (i) until the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General 
Meeting or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, 
whichever is earlier or (ii) in the case of shares to be issued in accordance with the terms of convertible securities 
issued, made or granted pursuant to this Resolution, until the issuance of such shares in accordance with the 
terms of such convertible securities. [See Explanatory Note (i)]

 (Resolution 5)

8. Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Interested Person Transactions

 That for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited:

(a) approval be given for the renewal of the mandate for the Company, its subsidiaries and target associated 
companies or any of them to enter into any of the transactions falling within the types of Interested Person 
Transactions as set out on Page 25 of the Company’s Annual Report with any party who is of the class of 
Interested Persons described in the Annual Report, provided that such transactions are carried out in the 
normal course of business, at arm’s length and on commercial terms and in accordance with the guidelines 
of the Company for Interested Person Transactions as set out in Pages 25 to 29 the Company’s Annual 
Report (the “Shareholders’ Mandate”);
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(b) the Shareholders’ Mandate shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, continue in 
force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting; and

(c) authority be given to the Directors to complete and do all such acts and things (including executing all such 
documents as may be required) as they may consider necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to the 
Shareholders’ Mandate as they may think fit. [See Explanatory Note (ii)] 

 (Resolution 6)

By Order of the Board

Tay Seo Long
Company Secretary

Singapore, 4 July 2006

Explanatory Notes:

(i) The Ordinary Resolution 5 proposed in item 7 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of this Meeting until 
the date of the next Annual General Meeting, or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting is required by law to 
be held or when varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting, whichever is the earlier, to allot and issue shares and 
convertible securities in the Company.  The number of shares and convertible securities that the Directors may allot and issue 
under this resolution would not exceed fi fty per centum (50%) of the issued shares in the capital of the Company at the time 
of the passing of this resolution.  For issue of shares and convertible securities other than on a pro rata basis to all shareholders, 
the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued shall not exceed twenty per centum (20%) of the issued 
shares in the capital of the Company.

 For the purpose of this resolution, the percentage of issued shares is based on the issued shares in the capital of the Company 
at the time this proposed Ordinary Resolution is passed after adjusting for new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of 
convertible securities, the exercise of share options or the vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the time when 
this proposed Ordinary Resolution is passed and any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares.

(ii) The Ordinary Resolution 6 proposed in item 8 above, if passed, will authorise the Interested Person Transactions as described 
on Pages 25 to 29 of the Annual Report and recurring in the year and will empower the Directors to do all acts necessary to 
give effect to the Shareholders’ Mandate.  This authority will, unless previously revoked or varied by the Company at a general 
meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Notes : 

1.  A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled to appoint not more than two 
(2) proxies to attend and vote in his/her stead.  However, where a member appoints more than one proxy, he shall specify the 
proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

  
2.  The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Offi ce of the Company at 2 Tuas South Avenue 2, 

Singapore 637601 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting. 

CSC HOLDINGS LIMITED 
Company Registration No. 199707845E

(Incorporated in the Republic Of Singapore)

PROXY FORM
(Please see notes overleaf before completing this Form)

I/We,  (Name)

of  (Address)
being a member/members of  CSC HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”), hereby appoint: 

Name
NRIC/

Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

Address

and/or (delete as appropriate)

Name
NRIC/

Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

Address

or failing the person, or either or both of the persons, referred to above, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy/
proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) of the Company to be held at 
the Function Room, 2 Tuas South Avenue 2, Level 2, Singapore 637601 on Thursday, 20 July 2006 at 9:00a.m. and at any 
adjournment thereof.  I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against the Resolutions proposed at the Meeting as 
indicated hereunder.  If no specifi c direction as to voting is given or in the event of any other matter arising at the Meeting 
and at any adjournment thereof, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion. The authority 
herein includes the right to demand or to join in demanding a poll and to vote on a poll.

(Please indicate your vote “For” or “Against” with a tick [√] within the box provided.)

No. Resolutions relating to:  For Against
 1 Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2006
2 (a) Re-election of Mr Tan Ee Ping  as a Director

(b) Re-election of Mr Teo Beng Teck as a Director
(c) Re-election of Mr See Yen Tarn as a Director
(d) Re-election of Mr Tan Hup Foi as a Director

3 Approval of Directors’ fees amounting to S$175,726
4 Re-appointment of KPMG as Auditors
5 Authority to allot and issue new shares
6 Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Interested Person Transactions

Dated this  day of  2006

Total number of Shares in: No. of Shares

(a)  CDP Register

(b)  Register of Members

Signature of Shareholder(s)

 or, Common Seal of Corporate Shareholder
 

IMPORTANT:
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy CSC HOLDINGS LIMITED’s 

shares, this Report is forwarded to them at the request of the CPF Approved 
Nominees and is sent solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF investors and shall be ineffective for 
all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by them.

3. CPF investors who wish to attend the Meeting as an observer must submit 
their requests through their CPF Approved Nominees within the time frame 
specifi ed. If they also wish to vote, they must submit their voting instructions 
to the CPF Approved Nominees within the time frame specifi ed to enable them 
to vote on their behalf.

#



Notes :

1. Please insert the total number of Shares held by you.  If you have Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register 
(as defi ned in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), you should insert that number of Shares.  If you 
have Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert that number of Shares.  If you have Shares 
entered against your name in the Depository Register and Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you 
should insert the aggregate number of Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name 
in the Register of Members.  If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to 
all the Shares held by you.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint one or two proxies 
to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he/she specifi es the proportion of his/her 
shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

4. Completion and return of this instrument appointing a proxy shall not preclude a member from attending and voting at the 
Meeting. Any appointment of a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to be revoked if a member attends the meeting in person, 
and in such event, the Company reserves the right to refuse to admit any person or persons appointed under the instrument of 
proxy to the Meeting.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered offi ce of the Company at 2 Tuas South Avenue 
2 Singapore 637601 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Meeting.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in 
writing.  Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its 
seal or under the hand of an offi cer or attorney duly authorised.  Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed 
by an attorney on behalf of the appointor, the letter or power of attorney or a duly certifi ed copy thereof must be lodged with 
the instrument.

7. A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such person as it thinks 
fi t to act as its representative at the Meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore.

General:

The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed or 
illegible, or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specifi ed in the 
instrument appointing a proxy or proxies.  In addition, in the case of Shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject 
any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have Shares entered against 
his name in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certifi ed by The Central 
Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

A META FUSION DESIGN
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